
 

 

TOWN COUNCIL 

 

MEETING 

 

PACKET 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
March 18, 2019 



 Town Council 
 

Agenda 
Monday, March 18, 2019 

          Town Hall, Council Chambers 
 450 So. Parish Avenue 

7:00 PM 
 

MISSION STATEMENT-“The mission of the government of the Town of Johnstown is to provide leadership based upon trust and 
integrity, commitment directed toward responsive service delivery, and vision for enhancing the quality of life in our community. 

 
Members of the audience are invited to speak at the Council meeting.  Public Comment (item No. 5) is reserved for citizen 
comments on items not contained on the printed agenda.  Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. When 
several people wish to speak on the same position on a given item, they are requested to select a spokesperson to state that position. 
If you wish to speak at the Town Council meeting, please fill out a sign-up sheet and present it to the Town Clerk. 
 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER 
A) Pledge of Allegiance 

 

2) ROLL CALL 
 

3)    AGENDA APPROVAL 
 

4)    RECOGNITIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS – Girl Scouts – Hometown Hero Project 
 
5)    PUBLIC COMMENT (three-minute limit per speaker)    
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The “Consent Agenda” is a group of routine matters to be acted on with a single motion and vote.  The Mayor will ask if any 
Council member wishes to have an item discussed or if there is public comment on those ordinances marked with an *asterisk.  
The Council member may then move to have the subject item removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion separately.   
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

6)   CONSENT AGENDA 
 A) Town Council Meeting Minutes – March 4, 2019 
       B)  February Financial Statements 
       C)  Payment of Bills 
       D) Second Reading Ordinance Number 2019-158, An Ordinance Amending Chapter 8 of the Johnstown Municipal Code to  
       Include Article VI Concerning The Operation of Golf Cars 
       E) Water and Sewer Service Agreement – Twin Silos Outlot D, Filing 4  
       F) Water and Sewer Service Agreement – Thompson River Pediatrics at 2534 
       G) Amendment #2 between CDOT and the Town of Johnstown, Resolution 2019-10, A Resolution Authorizing the Town of  
            Johnstown to Enter Into Amendment #2  
   
7)   TOWN MANAGER REPORT 
 
8)   TOWN ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
9)   OLD BUSINESS 

 
10)   NEW BUSINESS 
      A)  Continued Public Hearing – Continued Public Hearing Johnstown Plaza Design Book Guidelines Proposed Land Use Plan  
               Lot 1 from B1. to B.2 
        B)  Public Hearing – Vista Commons Preliminary Development Plan and and Preliminary Subdivision Plat 
        C)  Resolution Number 2019-09, A Resolution Appropriating Additional Sums of Money to Defray Expenses and Transfers in  
              Excess of Amounts Budgeted for the Town of Johnstown, Colorado 
        D)  Approval of the Town of Johnstown Capital Improvement Plan 
        E)  Water and Sewer Tap Fees 
        F)  Employment Agreement - Town Manager  
 
11)  EXECUTIVE SESSION  
                  
12)  COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 

 

 



 
 
 
 
13)  MAYOR’S COMMENTS    
 
14)   ADJOURN 

 
 

     NOTICE OF ACCOMODATION 
If you need special assistance to participate in the meeting, please contact the Town Clerk at (970) 587-4664. Notification at least 72 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the Town to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the meeting. 



AGENDA ITEM 6A-G 

 

 

 

CONSENT  
AGENDA 

• Council Minutes – March 4, 2019 
• February Financials 
• Payment of Bills 

• Ordinance Number 2019-158  
                             (2nd Reading) 

• Water and Sewer Service Agreement  
(Twin Silos Outlot D, Filing 4) 

• Water and Sewer Service Agreement 
(Thompson River Pediatrics at 2534) 

• Amendment #2 Between CDOT and the  
Town of Johnstown 

                        



 
 
 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE:  March 18, 2019 
 
ITEM NUMBER: 6A-G 
 
SUBJECT: Consent Agenda 
  
ACTION PROPOSED: Approve Consent Agenda 
 
PRESENTED BY: Town Clerk 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: The following items are included on the Consent Agenda, which may be 
approved by a single motion approving the Consent Agenda: 
 
     A) Town Council Meeting Minutes – March 4, 2019 
     B) February Financial Statements 
     C) Payment of Bills 
     D) Second Reading Ordinance Number 2019-158, An Ordinance Amending Chapter 8 of the Johnstown  
     Municipal Code to Include Article VI Concerning the Operation of Golf Cars 
     E)* Water and Sewer Service Agreement – Twin Silos Outlot D, Filing 4 
     F)**Water and Sewer Service Agreement – Thompson River Pediatrics at 2534 
     G) ***Amendment #2 Between CDOT and the Town of Johnstown 
 
* In compliance with the Town’s water rights dedication ordinance, Twin Silos, LLC submitted to the Town a Water 
and Sewer Service Demand Analysis on or about October 12, 2018, and it has been accepted by the Town upon a 
review by the Town’s Water Resources engineer.  Based upon the analysis with the proposed construction of 5 single 
family residential units the average water demand is calculated at 3.60± acre-feet per year.   
 
The total water requirement for this project is 3.60± acre-feet per year.  Due to previous dedications of stock in the 
Consolidated Home Supply Ditch and Reservoir Co., the Developer has 5.64 acre-feet of available credit to apply to 
this project.  The Water and Sewer Service Agreement was drafted by the Town’s Water Attorney, Pete Ampe. 
 
**In compliance with the Town’s water rights dedication ordinance, Thompson River Pediatrics at 2534, submitted 
to the Town a Water and Sewer Service Demand Analysis on or about March 1, 2019, and it has been accepted by 
the Town upon review by the Town’s Water Resources engineer.  Based upon the analysis with the proposed 
construction of approximately a 10,000 square foot health care facility the average in-building water demand is 
calculated to be 0.30± acre feet per year.  The landscaping (raw water) irrigation demand is calculated to be 0.42± 
acre feet per year 
. 
The total water requirement for this project is 0.72± acre feet per year.  Water credits for the in-building demand and 
the irrigation will come from Gerrard Family Limited Partnership LLLP and Thompson Ranch Development 
Company who previously dedicated water rights into a “water bank” under a prior agreement with the Town.  The 
Water and Sewer Service Agreement was drafted by the Town’s Water Attorney, Pete Ampe. 
 
***Enclosed for your review and consideration is an Amendment #2 between CDOT and the Town of Johnstown. As 
you will recall, the Council approved a Memorandum of Understanding between the Town of Johnstown and J-25 
Land Holdings, LLC. The MOU was an agreement for work that is to be performed by the Colorado Department of 
Transportation (CDOT) as part of the I-25 improvements in the area of the I-25 and Highway 402 Interchange. J-25 
is the entity that is requested these improvements be made by CDOT and the Town acts as a conduit between CDOT 
and J-25 for funding. This amendment memorializes the existing agreement and adds the J-25 construction 
improvements in Exhibit A-1 with a cost of $454,648.96. Funds from J-25 have been received in full. Upon 
completion, 3 signed copies must be provided back to CDOT along with a resolution of support to execute the 
amendment  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
LEGAL ADVICE: The entire Consent Agenda may be approved by a motion of the Town Council approving the 
Consent Agenda, which automatically approves each and every item listed on the Consent Agenda.  If a Council 
member wishes to have a specific discussion on an individual item included with the Consent Agenda, they may move 
to remove the item from the Consent Agenda for discussion.  
 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Consent Agenda 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 
For Approval: I move to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
For Denial:  
  
 
 
 
 



  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

 
  

 
 

  
 
 
       



The Town Council of the Town of Johnstown met on Monday, March 4, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers at 450 S. Parish Avenue, Johnstown. 
 
Mayor Lebsack led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call 
 
Those present were:   Councilmembers Berg, Lemasters, Mellon, Molinar Jr. Tallent and Young 
 
Also present:  Matt LeCerf, Interim Town Manager, Avi Rocklin, Town Attorney, Chief Brian 
Phillips, Marco Carani, Public Works Director, Kim Meyer, Planning Director, Mitzi McCoy, 
Finance Director and Diana Seele, Town Clerk 
  
Agenda Approval 
 
Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember Berg to amend the Agenda 
to add Item E. Discussion of land dedication and Item F. Executive Session.  Motion carried with 
a unanimous vote.   
 
Presentation   Mr. William O’Keefe- Milliken Middle School Stem Teacher – Disc Golf Course.  
Milliken Middle School students Athena Herrera, Paige Vetter and Kyleigh Wells presented 
Council with a request to build a Disc Golf Course.  Council thanked them for their great 
presentation and said they would take it under consideration.   
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember Molinar Jr. to approve the 
Consent Agenda with the following items:   

• February 20, 2019 Town Council Meeting Minutes 
• Second Reading Ordinance Number 2019-155, An Ordinance Amending Chapter 13 of 

the Johnstown Municipal Code to Include Article VIII Concerning Adoption of a Cross-
Connection Control Program 

• Second Reading Ordinance Number 2019-156 – An Ordinance Amending Chapter 6 of 
the Johnstown Municipal Code to Include Article X, Contractor Licenses 

• Resolution 2019-07, A Resolution Identifying Issues with the Zero Emission Vehicle 
Mandate Proposal 

• Consider 2019 Three Mile Plan 
Motion carried with a unanimous vote.  
 
New Business 
 
A.  Public Hearing – Amendment to Johnstown Plaza Design Book Guidelines Proposed Land 
Use Plan – Lot 1 from B1. To B.2 – The applicant, Johnstown Plaza, LLC file an application for 
an amendment to the Land Use Plan contained in the Design Handbook, to designate Lot 1, 2534 
Subdivision, Filing No. 16, from a B.1. designation (Office, Flex and Retail) to a B.2.  
designation (Office, Flex Retail and Multi-Family Residential).   



Johnstown, Colorado                                    -2-                                                  March 4, 2019 
 
Mayor Lebsack opened the Public Hearing at 7:28 p.m. The applicant’s representative Mr. Jim 
Shipton, of Point Consulting, LLC was present to answer Council’s questions.  The request 
would add multi-family dwellings to the permitted use.  The following individuals opposed the 
request:  Todd Williams, representing Thompson Ranch Development, Gary Gerrard, property 
owner in the 2534 annexation, and Nathan Gerrard, District Manager of the Thompson Crossing 
Metro District #2.  Having no further public comments the public hearing was closed at 7:50 
p.m. 
 
Councilmember Berg made a motion seconded by Councilmember Mellon to continue the Public 
Hearing regarding an Amendment to the Johnstown Plaza Design Book (Guidelines) to Change 
the Land Use Designation of Lot 1, 2534 Subdivision Filing No. 16 from B.1 Office, Flex and 
Retail Uses to B.2 Office, Flex, Retail and Multi-family.  Motion carried with a unanimous vote. 
 
B.  Public Hearing – New Hotel & Restaurant License – Lazy Dog, LLC – The applicant Lazy 
Dog Johnstown, LLC is requesting a Hotel & Restaurant License for Lazy Dog Tavern, located 
at 4801 Thompson Parkway.   
 
Mayor Lebsack opened the Public Hearing at 7:53 p.m., the applicant was present and gave a 
brief overview on their process for their employees and the serving of alcohol to customers and 
the survey they circulated to determine the needs and desires of the neighborhood.  Having no 
other public comments Mayor Lebsack closed the hearing at 8:05 p.m.  Councilmember Mellon 
made a motion seconded by Councilmember Molinar Jr. to approve the issuance of a Hotel and 
Restaurant License for Lazy Dog Tavern.  Motion carried with a unanimous vote.   
 
C.  Continued Public Hearing – First Reading – Ordinance Number 2019-158, An Ordinance 
Amending Chapter 8 of the Johnstown Municipal Code to Include Article VI Concerning the 
Operation of Golf Cars – Ordinance Number 2019-158 permits the operation of golf cars on the 
roadways and streets within the Town according to certain terms and conditions. 
 
Mayor Lebsack opened the Public Hearing at 8:07 p.m. and having no public comment closed 
the hearing at 8:11 p.m.  Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember 
Molinar Jr. Motion carried with a unanimous vote. 
 
D.  Consider Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Agreement Between the Town of Johnstown and 
Adolfson & Peterson Construction – Johnstown Community Recreation Center Construction 
Project -  Amendment No. 3 is the Final Guaranteed Maximum Price for the facility 
construction.   
Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember Lemasters to approve 
Amendment No. 3 (including Exhibit A) to the Agreement between the Town of Johnstown and 
Adolfson & Peterson Construction in an amount not to exceed $29,015,161.00 and authorize the 
owner’s representative (Mr. LaCouture), with approval from the Town Manager, to approve 
change orders in an amount not to exceed the construction budget amount of $29.2 million 
without Council approval.  Motion carried with a unanimous vote. 
 



Johnstown, Colorado                                      -2-                                                 March 4, 2019 
 
E.  Discussion of Land Dedication – Weld Re5-J Superintendent Arnold, requested the town 
consider transferring the 10 acre site in Clearview, currently owned by the town to the school 
district for a future elementary school.  Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by 
Councilmember Young to have staff execute paperwork necessary to transfer the property in 
Clearview to Weld RE5-J School District.  Motion carried with a unanimous vote. 
 
Council adjourned the meeting at 8:29 to proceed with the work session to discuss the town’s 
water court process.  The town’s water engineer’s and water attorney were present to answer 
questions and explain the process. 
 
The regular meeting was reopened at 9:00 p.m. 
 
Executive Session  Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember Molinar 
Jr. to recess into executive session to discuss matters subject to negotiation regarding the Town 
Manager’s employment agreement and to instruct the Town attorney related to the negotiation, 
pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e).  Motion carried with a unanimous vote. 
 
The meeting resumed at 9:25 p.m. 
 
There being no further business to come before Council the meeting adjourned at 9:30 p.m.   
 
 
                                                                      Mayor                           
 
 
                                                                 Town Clerk 



 

 

 

  

 

 

FEBRUARY 
FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS 
                                
 
 

 

 

                        



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - General Fund
Period Ending February 28, 2019

Unaudited

General Fund

 2019
Actuals

Jan - Feb 

2019
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance* 46,372,234      46,372,234      

Revenues:
Taxes & Fees 1,377,523        10,722,500      12.8%
Licenses & Permits 69,562             499,500           13.9%
Fines & Forfeitures 30,269             143,600           21.1%
Earnings on Investment 66,848             75,000             89.1%
Miscellaneous Revenue 14,604             53,000             27.6%

Total Operating Revenues 1,799,244        12,806,000      14.1%

Expenditures:
Legislative 2,378 78,900             3.0%
Judicial 5,351 51,100             10.5%
Elections - 19,300 0.0%
Adminstration 51,681             464,800 11.1%
Planning & Zoning 24,949             222,900 11.2%
Police 365,525           2,619,900        14.0%
Inspections 20,833             189,000           11.0%
Streets 224,512           1,549,900        14.5%
Cemetery 1,103 42,900             2.6%
Animal Control 1,330 93,400             1.4%
Senior Coordinator 13,237             76,400             17.3%
Parks 1,385 64,400             2.2%
Library 78,750             472,500           16.7%
Contingent 32,610             468,700           7.0%
Transfers Out (6,272) 24,846,000      0.0%

Total Expenditures 817,373           31,260,100      2.6%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 981,871           (18,454,100)     

Ending Fund Balance* 47,354,105      27,918,134      

* - Unaudited
16% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

14,000,000

Revenue Budget

2019 Revenues 
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

35,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2019 Expenditures
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Water Fund
Period Ending February 28, 2019

Unaudited

Water Fund

 2019
Actuals

Jan - Feb 

2019
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Cash Balance* 23,276,463 23,276,463

Revenues:
Charges for Services 256,752           2,745,000        9.4%

Total Operating Revenues 256,752           2,745,000        9.4%

Expenses:
Administration 28,290             341,100           8.3%
Operations 229,106           2,142,800        10.7%
Capital Outlay - - 
Depreciation - - 
Transfers Out - - 

Total Operating Expenses 257,396           2,483,900        10.4%

Operating Income (Loss) (644) 261,100 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Tap Fees 22,899             - 
Capital Investment Fees 53,109             - 
Misc. Revenues 49,249             305,000           16.1%
Interest Expense 51,279 100,000 51.3%

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 176,536           405,000           43.6%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenses 175,892           666,100           

Ending Cash Balance* 23,452,355 23,942,563

* - Unaudited

 

16% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

Revenue Budget

2019 Revenues
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2019 Expenditures
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Sewer Fund
Period Ending February 28, 2019

Unaudited

Sewer Fund

 2019
Actuals

Jan - Feb 

2019
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Cash Balance* 10,901,997 10,901,997

Revenues:
Charges for Services 332,501           1,880,000        17.7%
Miscellaneous Revenue 4,350 - 

Total Operating Revenues 336,851           1,880,000        17.9%

Expenses:
Administration 28,307             291,000           9.7%
Operations 119,354           1,783,000        6.7%
Capital Outlay - - 
Depreciation - - 

Total Operating Expenses 147,661           2,074,000        7.1%

Operating Income (Loss) 189,190           (194,000)          

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Capital Improvement Fees 17,300             - 
Misc. Revenues - 12,500 0.0%
Interest Expense 17,561             50,000             35.1%

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 34,861             62,500             55.8%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenses 224,051           (131,500)          

Ending Cash Balance* 11,126,048      10,770,497      

* - Unaudited
16% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

Revenue Budget

2019 Revenues
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

Expenditures Budget

2019 Expenditures
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Conservation Trust Fund
Period Ending February 28, 2019

Unaudited

Conservation Trust Fund

 2019
Actuals

Jan - Feb 

2019
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance* 2,651,796 2,651,796

Revenues:
Taxes & Fees 25,188 157,500 16.0%
Intergovernmental - 72,000 0.0%
Earnings on Investment 3,641 15,000 24.3%
Miscellaneous 198 5,000 4.0%

Total Operating Revenues 29,028             249,500           11.6%

Expenditures:
Operations 1,272 70,000             1.8%
Capital Outlay - 1,000,000 0.0%

Total Expenditures 1,272 1,070,000        0.1%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 27,756             (820,500)          

Ending Fund Balance* 2,679,552 1,831,296

* - Unaudited
16% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

Revenue Budget

2019 Revenues
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

Expenditures Budget

2019 Expenditures
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Contingent Fund
Period Ending February 28, 2019

Unaudited

Contingent Fund

 2019
Actuals

Jan - Feb 

2019
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance* 1,964,383 1,964,383

Revenues:
Earnings on Investment 4,243               13,500             31.4%
Transfers In -                       225,000           

Total Operating Revenues 4,243               238,500           1.8%

Expenditures:
Transfers Out -                       2,161,900        0.0%

Total Expenditures -                       2,161,900        0.0%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 4,243               (1,923,400)       

Ending Fund Balance* 1,968,626        40,983             

* - Unaudited
16% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

Revenue Budget

2019 Revenues
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

Expenditures Budget

2019 Expenditures
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

 



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Cemetery Fund
Period Ending February 28, 2019

Unaudited

Cemetery Fund

 2019
Actuals

Jan - Feb 

2019
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance* 120,895 120,895

Revenues:
Miscellaneous Revenue 594 3,000 19.8%
Earnings on Investment 477 1,300 36.7%

Total Operating Revenues 1,071 4,300 24.9%

Expenditures:
Operations & Maintenance - - 
Capital Outlay - - 
Transfers Out - - 

Total Expenditures - - 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 1,071 4,300 

Ending Fund Balance* 121,966           125,195           

* - Unaudited
16% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

Revenue Budget

2019 Revenues
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

Expenditures Budget

2019 Expenditures
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Equipment Replacement Fund
Period Ending February 28, 2019

Unaudited

Equipment Replacement Fund

 2019
Actuals

Jan - Feb 

2019
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance* 3,770,626        3,770,626        

Revenues:
Earnings on Investment 5,728               15,000             38.2%
Transfers In -                       -                       

Total Operating Revenues 5,728               15,000             38.2%

Expenditures:
Capital 40,942             161,000           25.4%

Total Expenditures 40,942             161,000           25.4%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (35,213)            (146,000)          

Ending Fund Balance* 3,735,413 3,624,626

* - Unaudited
16% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

Revenue Budget

2019 Revenues
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

Expenditures Budget

2019 Expenditures
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

 



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Drainage Fund
Period Ending Feburary 28, 2019

Unaudited

Drainage Fund

 2019
Actuals

Jan - Feb 

2019
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Cash Balance* 2,975,713 2,975,713

Revenues:
Charges for Services 72,754             430,000           16.9%

Total Operating Revenues 72,754             430,000           16.9%

Expenses:
Administration 12,564             100,600           12.5%
Operations 13,291             249,900           5.3%
Capital Improvements - - 
Transfer Out - - 

Total Operating Expenses 25,856             350,500           7.4%

Operating Income (Loss) 46,899             79,500             

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Capital Revenues - - 
Misc. Revenues - - 
Interest Expense 7,705 35,000             22.0%

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 7,705 35,000             22.0%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenses 54,603             114,500           

Ending Cash Balance* 3,030,316        3,090,213        

* - Unaudited
16% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

Revenue Budget

2019 Revenues
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

Expenditures Budget

2019 Expenditures
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Library Fund
Period Ending February 28, 2019

Unaudited

Library Fund

 2019
Actuals

Jan - Feb 

2019
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance* 1,872,089 1,872,089

Revenues:
Earnings on Investment - 1,184,900 0.0%
Miscellaneous Revenue - 9,000 0.0%
Transfers In - 3,000 0.0%

Total Operating Revenues - 1,196,900 0.0%

Expenditures:
Operations 47,897             720,000           6.7%
Capital Outlay - 850,000 0.0%

Total Expenditures 47,897             1,570,000        3.1%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures (47,897)            (373,100)          

Ending Fund Balance* 1,824,192        1,498,989        

* - Unaudited
16% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

Revenue Budget

2019 Revenues
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

0

400,000

800,000

1,200,000

1,600,000

2,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2019 Expenditures
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Capital Projects Fund
Period Ending February 28, 2019

Unaudited

Capital Projects Fund

 2019
Actuals

Jan - Feb 

2019
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance* 19,867,294 19,867,294

Revenues:
Taxes and Fees 410,300           1,200,000        34.2%
Miscellaneous Revenue -                       15,000             0.0%
Interest 39,512             100,000           39.5%
Transfers In -                       -                       

Total Operating Revenues 449,812           1,315,000        34.2%

Expenditures:
Capital Outlay 367,080           9,973,500        0.0%
Transfers Out -                       -                       

Total Expenditures 367,080           9,973,500        3.7%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 82,733             (8,658,500)       

Ending Fund Balance* 19,950,027      11,208,794      

* - Unaudited
16% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

Revenue Budget

2019 Revenues
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

0

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2019 Expenditures
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

 



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Johnson's Corner Improvement Fund

Period Ending February 28, 2019
Unaudited

Johnson's Corner Improvement Fund

 2019
Actuals

Jan - Feb 

2019
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance* 19,275 19,275

Revenues:
Taxes & Fees 18,028             124,000           14.5%
Earnings on Investment - 100 0.0%

Total Operating Revenues 18,028             124,100           14.5%

Expenditures:
Capital Outlay - 144,300 0.0%

Total Expenditures - 144,300 0.0%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 18,028             (20,200)            

Ending Fund Balance* 37,303             (925) 

* - Unaudited
16% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

Revenue Budget

2019 Revenues
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

Expenditures Budget

2019 Expenditures
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Impact Fund
Period Ending February 28, 2019

Unaudited

Impact Fund

 2019
Actuals

Jan - Feb 

2019
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance* 18,435,604 18,435,604

Revenues:
Taxes & Fees 86,902             855,000           10.2%
Earnings on Investment 34,216             100,000           34.2%

Total Operating Revenues 121,118           955,000           12.7%

Expenditures:
Capital Outlay 50,506             101,000           50.0%

Total Expenditures 50,506             101,000           50.0%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 70,612             854,000           

Ending Fund Balance* 18,506,216      19,289,604      

* - Unaudited
16% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

Revenue Budget

2019 Revenues
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

Expenditures Budget

2019 Expenditures
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Street Maintenance Fund
Period Ending February 28, 2019

Unaudited

Street Maintenance Fund

 2019
Actuals

Jan - Feb 

2019
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance* 300,231 300,231

Revenues:
Taxes & Fees 58,218             319,000           18.3%
Earnings on Investment -                       100                  0.0%

Total Operating Revenues 58,218             319,100           18.2%

Expenditures:
Operations & Maintenance -                       350,000           0.0%

Total Expenditures -                       350,000           0.0%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 58,218             (30,900)            

Ending Fund Balance* 358,448           269,331           

* - Unaudited
16% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

Revenue Budget

2019 Revenues
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

Expenditures Budget

2019 Expenditures
Jan ‐ Feb vs. Budgeted

 



  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
PAYMENT 

OF 
BILLS 

 
  

 
 

  
 
 
       



Town of Johnstown

List of Bills ‐ Feb. 20 ‐ Mar 10, 2019

Vendor Amount

4990 Ronald Reagan LLC 1,519.75

Aflac 647.63

AP Mountain States, LLC 980,364.20

Arrowhead Forensics 449.73

Atlas Business Solutions Inc 453.60

Avalis Wayfinding Solutions  233.22

Callendar, Tim 50.00

Callendar, Tim 40.00

Carmen Romero 120.00

Cintas 562.92

Cintas 418.53

Cintas ‐ Loveland 247.08

Colorado Assoc for Permit Tech 25.00

Consolidated Home Supply Ditch & 2,150.00

County Health Pool ‐ Dept#999040 44,434.20

Crystal Kavallieros 240.00

Darlington Lane HOA 140.00

Delta Dental 2,562.87

Don Gardner 55.60

DPC Industries Inc 12,420.60

Ergomed 1,200.00

Ferguson Waterworks 755.72

First National Bank 2,753.09

Glenn A. Jones Library 39,375.00

Great Western Railway of CO 68,396.49

Ground Engineering Consultants 9,475.00

Interstate Battery of the Rockies 121.95

J&D Creations 187.88

Kehr, Bailey 450.00

Larimer County Sales Tax Administrator 6,253.88

Law Office of Avi Rocklin LLC 13,453.00

Lee & Burgess Associates Of Co 3,000.00

Maria Flores 350.00

Napa Auto Parts, Inc 434.73

Newco Inc 324.42

NOCO Engineering Company 10,400.00

Ostermiller, David 50.00

Perkins+Will, Inc. 40,652.36

Pinnacol Assurance 12,183.35

Poudre Valley REA 11,271.76

Pribble, Maurice 500.00

Purchase Power 301.50

Reorganized Farmers Ditch Co.  412.50

Spradley Barr 30,758.00

Sun Life Financial 2,652.77

TDS 81.75



Town of Johnstown

List of Bills ‐ Feb. 20 ‐ Mar 10, 2019

TDS (430 S. Parish) 67.20

TDS (450 S. Parish) 168.19

TDS (4890 Ronald Reagan) 142.68

TDS (Water Treatment Plant) 95.95

Twin Silos, LLC 3,000.00

ULINE  590.44

University of Colorado 589.48

USA Bluebook  842.55

Verizon Wireless 2,348.08

Weld County Accounting 40,013.75

Weld County Dept of Public 2,859.00

Weld County Public Safety IT 75.00

Windstream 1,869.22

Winters, Hellerich & Hughes, L 2,058.75

Xcel Energy 15,463.68

Xcel Energy 7,814.79

Total 1,380,928.84



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ordinance No. 2019-158 
(2nd Reading) 













  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
WATER AND SEWER  

 
SERVICE AGREEMENT 

(Twin Silos, LLC) 
 
 
  

 
 

  
 
 
       













  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
WATER AND SEWER  

 
SERVICE AGREEMENT 

(Thompson River Pediatrics) 
  

 
 

  
 
 
       

















 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AMENDMENT #2 
 

(North I-25, J25 Land Holdings 
Project) 



 OLA #:   331001582  
 Routing #: 17-HA4-XC-00077-M0004  

 Document Builder Generated 
 Rev. 12/09/2016  

 Page 1 of 2 

STATE OF COLORADO AMENDMENT 
Amendment #: 2 Project #: Project SH 402 (21506) 

SIGNATURE AND COVER PAGE 

State Agency 

Department of Transportation 
Amendment Routing Number 

17-HA4-XC-00077-M0004

Local Agency 

 TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN 
Original Agreement  Routing Number 

17HA4XC00077 

Agreement Maximum Amount 

Initial term 

State Fiscal Year   

Extension terms 

State Fiscal Year   

State Fiscal Year 

State Fiscal Year 

State Fiscal Year 

Total for all state fiscal years 

N/A--Revenue Contract 
$0.00  

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

Agreement Performance Beginning Date 

The later of the effective date or March 28, 

2017 

Initial Agreement expiration date 

 March 27, 2022 

THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE EXECUTED THIS AMENDMENT 
Each person signing this Amendment represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized to execute this 

Amendment and to bind the Party authorizing his or her signature. 

STATE OF COLORADO 

Jared S. Polis, Governor 

Department of Transportation 

 Shoshana M. Lew, Executive Director 

___________________________________________ 

 Joshua Laipply, P.E., Chief Engineer 

Date: _________________________ 

LOCAL AGENCY 

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN 

___________________________________________ 

Signature 

___________________________________________ 

By: (Print Name and Title) 

Date: _________________________ 

LOCAL AGENCY  

(2nd Signature if Necessary) 

___________________________________________ 

Signature 

___________________________________________ 

By: (Print Name and Title) 

Date: _________________________ 

In accordance with §24-30-202 C.R.S., this Amendment is not valid until signed and dated below by the State 

Controller or an authorized delegate. 

STATE CONTROLLER 

Robert Jaros, CPA, MBA, JD 

By:_____________N/A______________________

Department of Transportation 

Effective Date:_____________________ 



 OLA #:   331001582  
 Routing #: 17-HA4-XC-00077-M0004  

 Document Builder Generated 
 Rev. 12/09/2016  

 Page 2 of 2 

1) PARTIES

This Amendment (the “Amendment”) to the Original Agreement shown on the Signature and Cover Page for

this Amendment (the “Agreement”) is entered into by and between the Local Agency and the State.

2) TERMINOLOGY

Except as specifically modified by this Amendment, all terms used in this Amendment that are defined in the

Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the Agreement.

3) EFFECTIVE DATE AND ENFORCEABILITY

A. Amendment Effective Date

This Amendment shall not be valid or enforceable until the Amendment Effective Date shown on the Signature

and Cover Page for this Amendment. The State shall not be bound by any provision of this Amendment before

that Amendment Effective Date, and shall have no obligation to pay the Local Agency for any Work performed

or expense incurred under this Amendment either before or after the Amendment term shown in §3.B of this

Amendment

B. Amendment Term

The Parties’ respective performances under this Amendment and the changes to the Agreement contained herein

shall commence on the Amendment Effective Date shown on the Signature and Cover Page for this Amendment

and shall terminate on the termination of the Agreement.

4) PURPOSE

A. The Parties entered into the Agreement for Local Agency making funds available for improvements to

North Interstate-25, Project SH 402 - SH 14 (21506).

B. The Parties now desire to delete Exhibit A-1 in its entirety. This will be replaced with Exhibit A-2 with an

updated TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN not to exceed reimbursement amount.

5) MODIFICATIONS

Exhibit A-1 – Scope of Work

Exhibit A-1 – Scope of Work is removed and replaced in its entirety with Exhibit A-2 attached hereto and

incorporated herein by reference. Upon execution of this Amendment, all references in the Agreement to

Exhibit A-1 will be replaced with Exhibit A-2.

Exhibit B is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

6) LIMITS OF EFFECT

This Amendment is incorporated by reference into the Agreement, and the Agreement and all prior amendments

or other modifications to the Agreement, if any, remain in full force and effect except as specifically modified

in this Amendment.  Except for the Special Provisions contained in the Agreement, in the event of any conflict,

inconsistency, variance, or contradiction between the provisions of this Amendment and any of the provisions

of the Agreement or any prior modification to the Agreement, the provisions of this Amendment shall in all

respects supersede, govern, and control.  The provisions of this Amendment shall only supersede, govern, and

control over the Special Provisions contained in the Agreement to the extent that this Amendment specifically

modifies those Special Provisions.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



EXHIBIT A-2 – SCOPE OF WORK 

North Interstate 25 Phase 1 Project Scope of Work specifics 

The Colorado Department of Transportation (“CDOT”) will complete the North Interstate 25 Phase 1 
Project (Hereinafter referred to as “this work”). The project is located on I-25 approximately from State 
Highway 402 to just south of State Highway 14, covering 14 miles in length between 
Johnstown/Loveland and Fort Collins, Colorado.  

I-25 is the primary north-south route through Colorado, and is the only continuous north-south
interstate route in the state, providing access to, through, and from northern Colorado.  This segment of
I-25 currently has two general purpose lanes in each direction.  The project adds a third travel lane in
both directions to be operated as a tolled express lane which will accommodate high occupancy vehicles
and charge tolls.

Elements of Project Scope: 

• Increase capacity by adding an express lane in both directions
• Provide a painted buffer to separate the express lane from general purpose travel
• Construct wider shoulders
• Replace or rehabilitate aging bridges, and widen additional structures
• Improve multi-modal access to regional transit to promote mode shift
• Improve bus service performance and reduce each total trip time by adding new bus slip ramps

to access a new Park-n-Ride
• Create new pedestrian and bicycle access under I-25 at Kendall Parkway
• Connect the Cache la Poudre River Regional Trail under I-25, also to serve as a wildlife corridor

By way of a Design Build (DB) contract and using a best value evaluation method, CDOT will select a 
contractor that will Design and Build this project, including innovations to save time and resources.  This 
approach leaves exact elements intentionally undefined.    

Local Agencies have contributed funds for improvements to I-25 included in this work.  

North Interstate 25 Interchange Project Scope of Work specifics 

The Basic Configuration will include all work necessary to widen US 34 from west of Rocky Mountain 
Avenue to east of Centerra Parkway to improve traffic operations within existing state right of way. The 
widening work will include a combination of median and outside widening to provide a minimum of three 
through lanes through the US 34 intersections with Rocky Mountain Avenue, I-25 Southbound Off-Ramp, 
I-25 Northbound On-Ramp and Centerra Parkway. The work will require earthwork, full depth pavement
construction, pavement milling and overlay of existing lanes, curb and gutter, median concrete work,
pavement marking, traffic signal modifications and signing.

The Basic Configuration will include reconstruction of the existing diamond interchange at I-25 and State 
Highway 402, including reconstruction of the ramps, bridges, State Highway 402 and the parking lot in  

Exhibit A-2, page 1 of 6



Exhibit A-2, Scope of Work, Continued 

the southwest quadrant.  State Highway 402 will be reconstructed to a configuration with four through 
lanes, with a raised median, and pedestrian and bicycle facilities. 

Technical Requirements: 

Design 
· CDOT shall consult with the Local Agency throughout the preparation of the Plans and submit to

the Local Agency for its review the proposed Plans prior to CDOT's acceptance of Release for
Construction Plans. The Local Agency must provide comments on the proposed Plans within 10
calendar days after the proposed Plans are referred to it. CDOT will require the Design Build
Contractor to address all issues identified by the Local Agency provided those issues are not in
conformance with the Contract Documents.

· The Local Agency shall waive all review fees for design.
· The Local Agency shall not require additional design reviews beyond those required by the

contract.
Construction 

· The Local Agency shall waive all permit fees for street use permits.
· CDOT shall consult with the Local Agency for its review of traffic control plans related to road

closures.
· The Local Agency requires 7 calendar days of advance notification for road closures.

North Interstate 25 J25 Project Scope of Work specifics 

In accordance with RCP No. 34 Rev 1 dated November 28, 2018 and Book 1, 13.2 Contractor Requested 
Change Orders, Kraemer/IHC Joint Venture (JV) requests a change order for the design and construction 
costs associated with the modification of the East Frontage Road (EFR) profile to accommodate future 
development. 

The following items are included from this scope. 

Design 

· Redesign of the EFR profile and related items.
· Design of EFR will follow the DQMP and project requirements.  JV and CDOT will need to partner

and perform “over-the-shoulder’ reviews of design packages to meet current project schedule.
· Design the grading to accommodate the J25 Developer (J25) profile and template.  JV will

excavate all necessary material to accommodate their future template.
· CDOT will prepare the ROW documentation for the ROW exchange needed for the revised

alignment between J25 and CDOT.
· CDOT will prepare utility easement documentation if a new utility easement is needed for the

LTWD line located along the East Frontage Road.
· Dry Utility Relocations – The utility easement on the east side of the frontage road is not

impacted horizontally with this profile change. However, the vertical profile change will require

Exhibit A-2, page 2 of 6



early grading to accommodate early utility relocations.  Vertical profile changes do impact the 
dry utility relocations and will require rough grading prior to final RFC’s. 

Easements/ROW 

· The revisions to the profile create a low spot at Station 1515+40 which will require cross
drainage.  The drainage line’s elevation will be at the invert of the roadside ditch on the west
side of the road and will daylight to the east.  This will require grading outside of our current
ROW.  Developer to provide JV with a general grading/blanket easement or MOA to allow work
to proceed.

· J25 Developer will provide a general grading/blanket easement that will allow JV to access their
parcel for work outside of CDOT ROW.  Work includes, but is not limited to, stockpiling excess
embankment to be used on the I-25 Express Lane project, access to a drainage line out falling to
the east near Sta. 1515+40.  See Exhibit A drawings for locations.

· J25/CDOT to swap ROW along the south tie – in.  See Exhibit B

 Earthwork/Grading 

· Earthwork and Drainage Modifications – The change in profile results in a significant cut versus
the fill in the RFC plans.  Additionally, a cross drain will need to be added at Sta. 1515.

· The JV will excavate all material necessary for the J25 profile and template. We will construct
roadside ditches to convey drainage to an outfall around Sta 1515+14

· Kraemer/IHC will be allowed to temporarily stockpile embankment south of 402 between the
new and existing frontage roads.  This material will remain the property of the JV for use in
other areas of the project.  JV will restore this area to existing conditions upon complete
removal.  Locations show in Exhibit A

 Storm Drainage 

· The changes to the profile will require an outfall near Sta. 1515+40 for drainage.  This system
will be designed to meet current project criteria.  Roadside drainage will flow in ditches to a low
point near Sta. 1515+14 and outfall to the east.  This outfall will be toward the east and outside
of existing ROW.

Roadway / Paving 

· JV to construct the project template per current RFC plans for Segment 1.

Wet Utilities 

· LWTD 12” waterline will be relocated to under the new frontage road.  This line in currently
parallels SH 402 and is being relocated to the south.

Environment / Erosion Control 

· Assumes no NEPA re-evaluations needed with this new profile or temporary grading outside of
existing ROW.

· All grading outside of existing ROW needed for outfalls and stockpile to be reclaimed per project
requirements.

Exhibit A-2, Scope of Work, Continued

Exhibit A-2, page 3 of 6



Exhibit A-2, Scope of Work (Phase 1 Funding Table) 

North Interstate-ZS Phase I Project 

un mg a e F d' T bl /P avment Sh d I ti c e u e or Town of Johnstown 
Swnmary of Contn1>ution by Y car 

Total 
Nameofl.ocalAgeocy/ 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Funding Partner Date of Date of Dateot Date of Date of 
Contribution 

Amount Payment Amount Payment Amount Payment Amount Payment Amount Payment 
Amount 

Town of Johnstown -
Phase 1 $250,000.00 Amil 30, 2017 $250,000.00 Amil 30, 2018 $250,000.00 Ai,ril30, 2019 S2SOOOO.OO April 30, 2020 SJ,000,000.00 

Exhibit A-2, page  4 of 6



Exhibit A-2, Scope of Work (Interchange Funding Table) 

Nor th Interstate-25 Interchange Project 

un mg a e F d' T bl / P ayment Shdl ti T c e u e or owno 0 sown fJ hn t 

Summary of Contribution by Year 
Total 

Name of Local Agency/ 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Funding Partner Date of Date of Date of Date of 
Contribution 

Amount Payment Amount Payment Amount Payment Amount Payment Amount Date of Payment 
Amount 

Town of Johnstown -

lnterchanl!e $6,000,000.00 December 31, 2020 S6,000,000.00 

Exhibit A-2, page 5 of 6



Exhibit A-1, Scope of Work (J25 Funding Table) 

North Interstate-ZS J25 Project 

F un d' mg T a bl e /P avment c Sh e d u I e ti or Town of Johnstown 
Swnmary of Contn1>ution by Y car 

Total 
Nameofl.ocalAgeocy/ 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Funding Partner Date of Date of Dateot Date of Date of 
Contribution 

Amount Payment Amount Payment Amount Payment Amount Payment Amount Payment 
Amount 

Town of Johnstown -
J 25 

 $454,648.96 Ai,ril30, 2019                                                $454,648.96 

Exhibit A-2, page 6 of 6







  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
RESOLUTION 

 
                        No. 2019-10 
 

(Resolution of Support) 
 
  

 
 

  
 
 
       



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-10 

 
AUTHORIZING THE TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN TO ENTER INTO AMENDMENT 
#2 TO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF 
COLORADO, FOR THE USE AND BENEFIT OF THE COLORADO 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, CONCERNING INTERSECTION 
IMPROVEMENTS AT INTERSTATE 25 AND STATE HIGHWAY 402 

WHEREAS, the Town of Johnstown, Colorado (the “Town”) is a Colorado home rule 
municipality, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado and the 
Town’s Home Rule Charter; and 

 
WHEREAS, Interstate 25 (“I-25”) serves as the primary north-south highway connection 

for Northern Colorado, including the Town, and is the primary route for the Town’s connectivity 
to commerce, health care, education and employment; and  

WHEREAS, the Colorado Department of Transportation (“CDOT”) is constructing 
improvements to I-25 in Northern Colorado between State Highway 14 and State Highway 402 
(“Project”); and  

WHEREAS, CDOT requested local contributions from jurisdictions that will be positively 
impacted by the Project due to the increased capacity along I-25 in Northern Colorado; and  

 
WHEREAS, on or about March 6, 2017, the Town Council approved an intergovernmental 

agreement with the State of Colorado, for the use and benefit of CDOT, identified as “Contract for 
Project: I-25 North: SH 402 - SH 14 (21506); Region 4” (“Intergovernmental Agreement”) to 
provide funds to support the Project; and  

 
WHEREAS, on or about August 7, 2017, the Town Council approved Amendment #1 to 

the Intergovernmental Agreement to provide additional funds for improvements to the Interstate 25 
and U.S. Highway 34 and State Highway 402 interchanges; and 

 
WHEREAS, a property owner, J-25 Land Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 

company, has requested that CDOT construct additional improvements to the Interstate 25 and 
State Highway 402 interchange and has provided funding to the Town to pay for the 
improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town desires to accommodate the property owner’s request and enter into 

a second amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement for the construction of such 
improvements; and 

 



WHEREAS, Colorado Revised Statutes §29-1-201, et seq., authorizes and enables 
governmental entities to enter into cooperative agreements for efficient and effective use of their 
powers and responsibilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that it is in the best interest of the Town to adopt 

and execute Amendment #2 to the Intergovernmental Agreement and authorize the expenditure 
of funds for the expanded scope of the Project.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, THAT:  
 

Section 1: The Town Council hereby approves and authorizes the execution of 
Amendment #2 to the Intergovernmental Agreement with the State of Colorado, for the use and 
benefit of the Colorado Department of Transportation.  

 
Section 2:  The Town Council hereby approves the expenditure of funds for the 

expanded scope of the Project. 
 
Section 3: The Town of Johnstown has appropriated sufficient funds to cover the Town’s 

local share contribution for the 2019 calendar year.   
 
Section 4: This Resolution shall be effective as of the date of its adoption 

 
 
PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this ___ day of March, 2019. 
 
       TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 
ATTEST: 
 
By:___________________________________ By:_________________________________ 
      Diana Seele, Town Clerk                Gary Lebsack, Mayor 



 
AGENDA ITEM 7 
 
 
 
 

TOWN MANAGER 
 

REPORT 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN 

MEMORANDUM 
 

The Community That Cares 

 

 

TO:   Honorable Mayor and Town Council Members 

 

FROM:  Matt LeCerf, Interim Town Manager 

 

DATE:  March 18, 2019 

 

CC:   Town Staff 

Local Media 

 

SUBJECT:  Departmental Report 

 

 

Upcoming Town Council Work Sessions – If there are topics that the Council would like staff to 

schedule for discussion, please let me know. The following topics are recommended for Council 

discussion (all meetings will be held in the Town Council Chambers unless otherwise indicated): 

 

 03/18/2019 – Regular Town Council Meeting 

 03/25/2019 – Work Session – Home Supply Ditch Company 

 04/01/2019 – Regular Town Council Meeting 

 04/08/2019 – Work Session (None Scheduled) 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Police Department 

Training:  

 March 4-5, 2019 Officer Wood attended drug training entitled Drug Interdiction 

and Conducting Complete Traffic Stops where he learned. 

 Specific techniques in detecting drug trafficking activity 

 Road side interview techniques 

 False compartments used to conceal drugs in vehicles 

 Instruction on best practices of conducting vehicle searches 

 March 7, 2019 Red side received Firearms Training 

 All officers qualified with their duty-weapon, off-duty weapon and patrol rifle. 

 March 8, 2019 Lt. Oglesby attended the last of four classes entitled The Next 

Leadership Journey. 

 This course focused on changing leadership styles to meet organizational 

demands. 

Community Policing, Outreach & Miscellaneous Items: 

 March 1, 2019 Commander Sanchez attended an Aims Police Academy Advisory 

meeting where we discussed. 

 Academy application process for 2019-20 

 Police Academy cost sheet 



 Status of a full-time police academy  

 Input on Police Academy graduation ceremony 

 Equipment needs 

 March 9, 2019 the Police Department played the Front Range Fire Rescue in Donkey 

Basketball to raise money for after-prom. 

 March 1, 2019 Commander Sanchez received a Life Saving Award from the Greeley 

Fire Department for pulling a lady from a burning car. 

 March 12, 2019 Lt. Oglesby and Sgt. Dickerson gave a presentation to Canyon Bake 

House on Active Shooter 

 Run/Hide/Fight 

 Law enforcements response to active shooter 

 

Administration, Finance, & Planning 

 CDOT Project/Planning Meeting – Town Staff met with CDOT about a number of 

projects of mutual interest and benefit.  including the I-25 improvements at Hwy 60 and 

Hwy 402 that were very productive. Specific topics included:  

o Signage at the interchanges 

o Scope and Bridge improvements at Hwy 60 

o Conduit at Hwy 402 for the roundabout 

o LCR3 alternate route, railroad crossing improvements and the Hwy. 34 PEL 

o A cooperative project for a trail pathway under I-25 between Johnstown and 

Loveland 

o Planned scope and possible improvements on High Plains Blvd. 

 School Board Meeting – As directed by Council, the Town Manager attended the School 

Board Meeting to convey the idea that the Town was interested in partnering in a 

property exchange with the District for a possible new elementary school to strengthen 

our community. 

 WCR 50 & LCR 14 Improvements – The Mayor and Interim Town Manager met with 

Commissioner James about a possible cooperative project on WCR 50 and LCR 14 to 

make critical improvements to an approximate 9,700 linear foot section of roadway 

owned in various sections by Larimer County, Weld County, and the Town. We are 

exploring the opportunity of a grant and still valiantly trying to gain feedback from 

Larimer County on their possible interest in participating in this project for the benefit of 

all traffic, both inside and outside of the Town limits. 

 LCR 3 Realignment – Staff met with several developers along the LCR 3 realignment 

segment that connects to Hwy. 34.  We had positive comments about the potential to 

make the project a reality rather than just the lines on a drawing. Discussions will 

continue with all of the parties including exploring funding options and mechanisms to 

move this important safety and access project forward. 

 Planning Activity – Five new development project applications were received since the 

prior Council report, and are being routed through Staff and ancillary reviewers for initial 

comments. During the week of March 4, Planning Staff fielded 32 call/walk-in land use, 

zoning, and development questions. 

 Development Project Reviews – Approximately 13 proposed development projects 

remain in active review status, coordinating revisions with Staff.  

 



Public Works Department 

Streets, Storm water & Parks 

 Community Cleanup Day – Community Cleanup Day is set for April 27th. 

 Lake pipe repair – Crew repaired the 24” fill line at the lake. The old line was a clay line 

that was broken behind the head wall and buried below the existing grade. Crews 

installed a new piece of 24” HDPE pipe at the proper grade to reduce any further 

restrictions when the lake is filling. This may help to mitigate future localized flooding in 

areas when the ditch is running water. 

 New hires – We would like to welcome Travis Gould and Jason Retchless to the Public 

Works Streets staff. Jason fills the vacancy from Gannon Laber who left the town to 

pursue a career in the Oil & Gas Industry. Travis fills an approved FY 2019 position 

within the Department.  

 Signs – New signs were installed at the Thompson Pkwy roundabout. Old signs were 

undersized and did not have the reflectivity needed for visibility. Bigger stop signs with 

flags were installed at Ronald Reagan Pkwy. We hope this improves safety and mobility. 

 Snow plowing – Crews worked the 2nd and 3rd of March plowing snow. The cold 

temperatures hampered snow melting applications. Crews place a 7% mix material when 

temperatures drop below 20 degrees for traction.  

 Senior Center – Crew repaired and replaced sinks and toilets at the senior center.  

 Training – Don Gardner and Austin Lanier attended a two-day ADA class in Fort 

Morgan. This class teaches the importance of and proper applications for ADA 

compliance.   

 

Water & Wastewater 

 Water plant – The DAF saturator has been delivered to the water plant. Stanek 

Construction has been getting ready for plant shutdown beginning on March 18 and will 

last for the entire week and all supporting outside water entities have been notified and 

are prepared to provide water through our emergency connects. During this shut down 

Stanek Construction will be removing all the old pipe in the basement of the filter 

building and replacing with new. Installation of the saturator does not require the plant to 

be offline and is scheduled to be completed within two weeks the initial shutdown.  

 Wastewater – Crews had to thaw the sodium bisulfate line at the central plant due to the 

cold temperatures last week. We have had a few issues with chemical lines this year. We 

believe it is due to our tanks having sediment collected at the bottom of tanks. 

Accordingly, crews cleaned out sediment, to help with plugging and freezing issues.  

 Congratulations – Please congratulate Ron Barnett who passed his Class B State Water 

Certification.  
 



 
AGENDA ITEM 10A 
 
 
 
 

CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING 
 

AMENDMENT TO THE  
JOHNSTOWN PLAZA DESIGN BOOK 

GUIDELINES 
 
 
 



*PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE –Amendment to Johnstown Plaza Design Book 
Guidelines Proposed Land Use Plan – Lot 1 from B2. To B2. 

1. Open public hearing. 

2. Receive information from staff. 

3. Receive information from applicant. 

4. Receive information from public. 

a. Ask to hear from anyone who supports the Amendment. 

b. Ask to hear from anyone who opposes the Amendment. 

5. Receive rebuttal from applicant.  (Discretionary and only if warranted at the time.) 

6.  Additional questions from Council, if any.  (Council may ask questions at any time until 
the hearing is closed.) 

7. Close the public hearing.   

8. Discussion and deliberation among Council. 

9. Make a decision and/or motion from Council.   

SUGGESTED MOTIONS 

For Approval:  
(Motion for approval is on the Town Council Agenda Communication) 
 
For Denial:  
(Motion for denial is on the Town Council Agenda Communication) 
 

 

 

 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 

AGENDA DATE:  March 18, 2019 
  
ITEM NUMBER:  10A 
 
SUBJECT: *Public Hearing – Public Hearing Regarding an Amendment to the 

Johnstown Plaza Design Book (Guidelines) to Change the Land Use 
Designation of Lot 1, 2534 Subdivision Filing No. 16 from B.1 
Office, Flex and Retail Uses to B.2 Office, Flex, Retail and Multi-
family 

 
RECOMMEND ACTION: Approve the Resolution for a Land Use Designation Subject to the 

Conditions Proposed by Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  1. Resolution 2019-08 

2. Map Depicting Site of Land Use Change 
3. Planning and Zoning Packet Items Including Referral Agencies, 
Application with Submittals 
4. Letters from TCMD 1 & 2 (2 Letters) 

 
PRESENTED BY:  Mr. Matt LeCerf, on behalf of Town Planner 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
The owner of the property, have requested Town approval of an amendment to the Johnstown Plaza 
Design Book. The amendment would add a Multi-Family Residential, a Principal Use and Residential 
Accessory use Section, and change the Land Use Plan for the parcel currently designated B.1 Office, 
Flex, Retail. The applicant proposes to construct approximately 228 apartments, and accessory uses. If 
approved by Council, the guidelines for design, if the property develops into multi-family would follow 
the 2534 Design Guidelines. 
 
Existing and Proposed Land Use(s): The property is presently vacant, and the proposal is for a Multi-
Family and accessory uses in the southwest corner of Ronald Reagan Blvd. and Exposition. 
 
Prior Actions: In 2016, this property was included in an amendment to the 2534 Design Guidelines 
to remove the Johnstown Plaza commercial area from the 2534 Design Guidelines. The Johnstown 
Plaza Design Book was approved in February 2018. 
 
On February 13, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed and approved the applicant’s 
rezoning request with a motion to recommend approval of the Amendment to the Johnstown Plaza 
Design Book (Guidelines) to change the Land Use Designation of Lot 1 (approximately 11.5 acres), 
2534 Subdivision Filing No. 16 from B.1 Office, Flex and Retail Uses to B.2 Office, Flex, Retail and 
Multi-Family with the following conditions: 
 
Conditions Proposed by P & Z: 

1. The Site Plan shall be revised to comply with Town's Traffic Engineer's requirements 
including those presented in a letter dated November 20, 2018, in a letter to John Franklin 
including:  



a. reducing the number of vehicular ingress/egress points on Ronald Reagan Blvd. to ONE 
and aligning it "with the Ridgeview Office Park access" and 

b. moving the first vehicular ingress/egress point south of Ronald Reagan Blvd. along the 
west side of Exposition Drive further south to meet the "minimum 175 foot spacing" 
requirement; and 

2. Preparing and providing the Town Engineer with a water system modeling report for the 
proposed development; and, 

3. Compliance with the Town's and Loveland Fire and Rescue Authority's Standards for all 
improvements; and, 

4. Addressing and resolving the "Sanitary Interceptor Sewer" issue downstream of the 2534 
area but upstream of the Low Point Wastewater Treatment Plant identified by the Town 
Engineer to the Town's satisfaction prior to Final Design approval. 

 
Special Note (UPDATE SINCE March 4, 2019): 
The public hearing was continued on March 4 due to questions and comments of objections not being 
answered by the applicant. This meeting will either complete the public hearing or continue it again 
to a later date. The applicant is not expected to be in attendance, but other representatives related to 
matters in the letters from TCMD 1 & 2 will be present if the Council desires to move forward with 
the public hearing without the applicant present. 
 
LEGAL ADVICE: 
The resolution was drafted by the Town Attorney 
 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: 
Not Applicable 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
The Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended approval of the amendment (with 
conditions). 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
For Approval: 
I move to approve the Amendment to the Johnstown Plaza Design Book (Guidelines) to change the 
Land Use Designation of Lot 1, 2534 Subdivision Filing No. 16 from B.1 Office, Flex and Retail 
Uses to B.2 Office, Flex, Retail and Multi-Family with the following conditions as established by the 
Planning Commission (or based on Council recommendation). 
 
For Denial: 
I move to deny approval of the Amendment to the Johnstown Plaza Design Book (Guidelines) for the 
requested zoning change to B.2. 
 
Reviewed and Approved for Presentation: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Town Manager 



  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
RESOLUTION 

 
                        No. 2019-08 
 

  
 
 

  
 
 
       



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-08_ 

 APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE JOHNSTOWN PLAZA 
DESIGN HANDBOOK LAND USE PLAN TO DESIGNATE LOT 1, 2534 
SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 16, AS “AREA B.2”  
TO ALLOW MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT, AND 
TO REQUIRE THAT THE DESIGN STANDARDS SET FORTH IN THE 
2534 DESIGN GUIDELINES APPLY TO THE MULTI-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT 
 

WHEREAS, on or about February 21, 2018, the Town Council of the Town of Johnstown 
(“Town”) approved and adopted the Johnstown Plaza Design Handbook (“Design Handbook”); 
and 

WHEREAS, on or about October 16, 2018, the property owner, Johnstown Plaza, LLC, a 
Kansas limited liability company, filed an application for an amendment to the Land Use Plan 
contained in the Design Handbook to designate Lot 1, 2534 Subdivision, Filing No. 16, from an 
Area B.1 designation (Office, Flex and Retail) to an Area B.2 designation (Office, Flex, Retail 
and Multi Family Residential), to allow, in addition to the current uses, multi-family residential 
development; and 

WHEREAS, Section 1.3.5 of the Design Handbook provides that a change in land use 
constitutes a major change and shall require action by the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
final approval by the Town Council; and 

WHEREAS, on February 13, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public 
hearing, and voted to recommend approval of the proposed land use change on the conditions 
that: 

1. The applicant revise the site plan to comply with Town’s Traffic Engineer’s 
requirements, including those presented in a letter to John Franklin dated November 20, 
2018, which  include:  
a. reduce the number of vehicular ingress/egress points on Ronald Reagan Boulevard to 

one and align it “with the Ridgeview Office Park access;” and 
b. move the first vehicular ingress/egress point south of Ronald Reagan Boulevard along 

the west side of Exposition Drive further south to meet the “minimum 175 foot 
spacing” requirement;  

2. The applicant prepare and provide the Town Engineer with a water system modeling 
report for the proposed development;  

3. The applicant comply with the Town’s standards and with Loveland Fire and Rescue 
Authority’s standards for all improvements; and 

4. The applicant address and resolve the “sanitary interceptor sewer” issue downstream of 
the 2534 development, but upstream of the Low Point Wastewater Treatment Plant, as 
identified by the Town Engineer, to the Town’s satisfaction prior to final design 
approval. 



 

 

 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2019, the Town Council held a public hearing to consider the 
application and heard evidence presented by, among others, a representative of the applicant; and  

WHEREAS, based upon all the evidence received, the Town Council finds that proposed 
land use change is appropriate and in the best interests of the Town, subject to the following 
conditions.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, THAT: 

Section 1.  The Land Use Plan contained in the Johnstown Plaza Design Handbook, as 
approved on February 21, 2018, shall be amended to designate Lot 1, 2534 Subdivision Filing 
No. 16 as “Area B.2” subject to the following conditions: 

1. The Planning and Zoning Commission’s conditions of approval shall be satisfied; 

2. Multi-family residential development in Area B.2 shall be subject to the design 
standards for multi-family residential development set forth in the 2534 Design 
Guidelines; and  

3. The Johnstown Plaza Design Handbook shall be amended to reflect that the 2534 
Design Guidelines applies to multi-family residential development in Area B.2. 

Section 2.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage and approval.   

PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this __ day of ______________, 2019. 

ATTEST:     TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

 

By: ___________________________  By: _______________________________ 
   Diana Seele, Town Clerk          Gary Lebsack, Mayor 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LAND USE MAP 
                          

 



               `` 

 
   
 
 S  E  C  T  I  O  N     1         P  A  G  E     8  

 

mlecerf
Callout
Proposed Amendment Site





















































 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LETTERS FROM  
THOMPSON CROSSING 

METRO DISTRICT # 1 & 2 



Thompson Crossing Metro District No.2 
27154 County Rd 13 

Johnstown, CO 80534 

ph: (970) 669-1463  fax: (970) 669-0593 

 

 

March 6, 2019 

 

 

 

Town of Johnstown Town Council  

c/o Mr. Matt LeCerf, Town Manager 

450 S. Parish Avenue  

Johnstown, CO 80534 

 

Honorable Mayor and Council; 

 

As a creditor and Board Member of Thompson Crossing Metro District No. 2 (TCMD2), 

a bond holder for the Johnstown Plaza Metro District (JPMD), and signatory to the 

Exclusion Agreement (which the Town acknowledges exists), I would request that this 

letter be entered into the record of the Public Hearing for the amendment to the 

Johnstown Plaza Design Book Guidelines Proposed Land Use Plan Lot 1 from B1 to B2 

(from commercial to multi-family residential). 

 

While I have no particular issue with land use changes in general and I certainly have no 

issue with multi-family as a use at 2534, this particular proposal violates the basis of the 

Exclusion Agreement that myself as both a creditor and Board Member of TCMD2 relied 

upon to reach an agreement to exclude properties from the TCMD2 taxing district. While 

there may be others, there are two main issues with this proposed change that are directly 

related to District financing: 

 

1. There have not been any updated projections provided to TCMD2 to compare tax 

revenues for the proposed use with those originally used as a basis for the 

Exclusion Agreement. The Resolution approving the exclusion from TCMD2 

states “WHEREAS, based upon the Petition, the Service Plan for the District, and 

such other evidence as was presented to the Board and made part of the record in 

this proceeding...”. While the type of land use is not specifically mentioned in the 

Exclusion Agreement, it is the basis for the bond repayment calculations and 

therefore the very foundation of the entire document. As part of the Exclusion 

Agreement the mill levy is capped at 10 mills for commercially assessed land for 

all of the excluded parcels. If the land use is changed from commercial to 

residential, the assessed value of the property will drop from 29% to 7.2% and 

will continue to drop in the future due to the Gallagher Amendment. With a 

drastically reduced assessment, the “Gallagher effect” and a capped mill levy, the 

tax revenue projections may not be sufficient to service the debt as established 

under the Agreement. Unilaterally lowering the tax revenues available to service 



the debt, even with Town approval, may constitute a breach of the terms and 

intent of the Exclusion Agreement.  

 

2. An after-the-fact land use change could deprive TCMD2 of future tax revenues. 

This is an important distinction from developer competition because under certain 

market conditions a change of use from what it was at the time of exclusion as 

represented to TCMD2 for the purposes of the debt repayment calculations for 

approval of the exclusion could permanently deprive TCMD2 of tax revenues that 

would be unjustly shifted to JPMD.  

 

The Exclusion Agreement was negotiated over several months and every detail was 

debated and carefully drafted to protect the taxpayers and creditors in TCMD2 from the 

loss of potential tax income from the excluded properties. This exclusion process was 

initiated by Carson Development and requested by the Town. The Town mediated our 

negotiations through its outside counsel because it stands to receive a significant financial 

benefit for many years. Any unilateral change to the Agreement, or to the terms that were 

relied upon to approve it, by JPMD, Carson Development, or the Town, or with the 

approval of the Town, may be viewed as a breach of the conditions of approval for 

exclusion and will be opposed by TCMD2 and its creditors.  

 

In an effort to find a fair and equitable resolution, I would respectfully request that the 

Town, in acknowledging its financial interest and role in mediating the negotiations for 

the exclusion of TCMD2 properties, refer JPMD back to TCMD2 to negotiate an 

amendment to the Exclusion Agreement that sufficiently protects the creditors and 

taxpayers of TCMD2 before the Town Council continues the hearing for this land use 

change. 

 

Thank you for your careful consideration of these facts as you decide how to proceed.  

 

Sincerely yours, 

 

 

 

Gary Gerrard 

President, TCMD 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









 
AGENDA ITEM 10B 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

VISTA COMMONS  
(Preliminary Subdivision Plat and  

Preliminary Subdivision Development Plan) 
 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 

AGENDA DATE:  March 18, 2019 
  
ITEM NUMBER:  10B 
 
SUBJECT: Vista Commons PUD – Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) and 

Preliminary Plat (PP) 
 
ACTION PROPOSED: Consider and Approve Vista Commons PUD – PDP and PP 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  1. Preliminary Development Plan, 
                                                2. Preliminary Subdivision Plan,     
                                                3. Planning and Zoning Commission Agenda Memorandum   
                                                4. Planning and Zoning December 12, 2018 Minutes   
 
PRESENTED BY:  Matt LeCerf, Interim Town Manager 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
Enclosed for your review and consideration is request for approval of a preliminary site 
development plan and preliminary subdivision plat for single-family development, and mixed-use 
tracts for multi-family/retail/office/institutional/commercial/hospitality and business tech park 
uses.  Woven within the mixture of land uses will be open space/detention areas and pocket parks 
with connecting sidewalks, trail systems and landscaping. 

Prior Actions: The property was annexed and zoned PUD-MU in 2000 as the Pratt Technology 
Campus Annexation. Special Provisions in the Annexation Agreement provides for reimbursement 
to the Town for a portion of the Town’s cost to install the Gateway water main, and Phase 1 
sanitary sewer. An Outline Development Plan (ODP) and special provisions were part of the 
approved annexation and zoning. 

Preliminary Site Development Plan Analysis: The PDP depicts a cohesive development plan 
and standards for a total of 149.0 acres and is generally portioned between 45.8 acres of mix-use 
commercial/business uses, 20.8 acres of mixed-use multi-family/retail/office uses, 30.7 acres of 
single-family dwellings (5.16 D.U./Ac.), 29.7 acres of open space, and 22.0 acres of street ROW 
dedications. 
 
The residential make-up of this development will consist of 115 single family dwelling units (from 
6,000 to over 7,000 square feet in area), 36 attached single-family units on 5.67 acres at a density 
of approximately 6 units per acre, and 360 multi-family units at a density of 14 units per acre. 
Multi-family may be integrated with commercial uses based on market conditions.  A full 
development review process and project vetting was completed, and findings were brought before 
the Planning and Zoning Commission for recommendations to Town Council. 



Preliminary Plat Analysis: The coinciding preliminary plat dedicates lots and tracts associated 
with the project’s proposed distribution of land uses.  The development review process identified 
the following items to be resolved or addressed at the time of final plat presentation: 
 

1. The property is annexed and zoned for residential, commercial and employment 
development. 

2. The preliminary site development plan is generally consistent with the Pratt Property 
Outline Development Plan, as amended. 

3. The existing Town water system serving the property may not have sufficient capacity at 
buildout of the development to meet the property’s fire flow requirements. Additional 
storage and pumping capacity may be required. Additional water rights may also be 
required for buildout. With each final subdivision application a raw water demand study 
and water system analysis must be provided. As a variance to standards due to the AT&T 
easement, lots along Street ‘E’ may be served from the rear. 

4. Sufficient capacity in the current interceptor sewer system does not appear to exist to serve 
the planned uses at buildout. Improvements, by other developments, to the downstream 
system may occur in the near future. With each final subdivision a capacity analysis must 
be provided. 

5. The proposed street classifications are acceptable, subject to further design review, 
including requested variances. 

6. Access to Hwy 60 is subject to the Access Control Plan and CDOT approval. 
 
LEGAL ADVICE: N/A 
 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended to the 
Town Council approval of the Vista Commons PUD Preliminary Development Plan and 
Preliminary Plat at their December 12, 2018 meeting with the following staff conditions: 
 

1. Comments from Town staff, Town Engineer, Traffic Engineer and outside agencies 
including CDOT, Johnstown Fire District and RE- 5J School District shall be resolved or 
addressed as special development provisions in the public improvement development 
agreement(s) presented to Town Council with the Final Plat(s) for consideration. 

2. Variances to standards shall follow the recommendations of the Town Engineer and Traffic 
Engineer. The collector street parking variance will be considered for the adjoining multi-
family if adequate off-street parking for commercial uses is provided and sightlines on the 
curved road are sufficient.   

3. Street names for the overall property shall be provided by the developer for Town approval 
with first final plat. 

 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 



For Approval: I move to approve the Vista Commons PUD Preliminary Development Plan and 
Preliminary Plat (as submitted with recommended conditions, and or subject to the following 
additional conditions…). 
 
For Denial: I move to deny approval of the Vista Commons PUD Preliminary Development Plan 
and Preliminary Plat (for the following reasons…). 
 
 
Reviewed and Approved for Presentation: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Town Manager 



*PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE –Vista Commons PUD – Preliminary Development 
Plan and Preliminary Subdivision Plat.   

1. Open public hearing. 

2. Receive information from staff. 

3. Receive information from applicant. 

4. Receive information from public. 

a. Ask to hear from anyone who supports the Preliminary Development Plan and 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat.   

b. Ask to hear from anyone who opposes the Preliminary Development Plan and 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat.   

5. Receive rebuttal from applicant.  (Discretionary and only if warranted at the time.) 

6.  Additional questions from Council, if any.  (Council may ask questions at any time until 
the hearing is closed.) 

7. Close the public hearing.   

8. Discussion and deliberation among Council. 

9. Make a decision and/or motion from Council.   

SUGGESTED MOTIONS 

For Approval:  
(I move to approve the Vista Commons PUD Preliminary Development Plan and 
Preliminary Plat (as submitted with recommended conditions and or subject to the 
following additional conditions…) 
 
For Denial:  
(I move to deny approval of the Vista Commons PUD Preliminary Development Plan and 
Preliminary Plat (for the following reasons…) 
 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
                    
                            APPLICATION 
 
               
 



 
450 S. Parish Ave. Johnstown, CO 80534  
Ph: 970-587-4664    Fax: 970-587-0141          

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION 

 
Date: ______________________ 
 
Project Name: ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Application is for:  □ Annexation  □ Zoning  □ Subdivision □ Other  (please specify)__________________________ 
 
Landowner:  _____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:  _______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone:   __________________ 
 
Authorized Representative: ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:  _______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone: _________________; Fax Number: ______________; E-Mail:____________________________ 
 
 
Landowner Authorization: 
 
The undersigned affirms ownership of the property pertaining to this application, and hereby applies to the Town of 
Johnstown, Colorado for the above indicated development review process, and authorizes the individual or company 
stated as "“authorized representative” to represent me/us in all aspects of said process. 
 
 
____________________________________   ________________________________ 
Signature of Landowner                          Signature of Landowner 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF   ) 
 
 The foregoing application was subscribed and sworn to before me this _______day of ________________, A.D., 

__________, by _______________________________________________. 
  

Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 My commission expires:  _____________________ 

 
 

_____________________________________ 
Notary Public 

Josh
Typewriter
2018.10.12

Josh
Typewriter
VISTA COMMONS (PRATT PROPERTY)

Josh
Check One Two

Josh
Check One Two

Josh
Typewriter
PDP & PRELIM. PLAT

Josh
Typewriter
GEORGE SEWARD

Josh
Typewriter
NE CORNER OF I-25 & SH-60, JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

Josh
Typewriter
970.597.0160

Josh
Typewriter
JOSH McCARN - THE FRONTERRA GROUP (TFG DESIGN, LLC)

Josh
Typewriter
138 E 4TH STREET, NO. 1, LOVELAND, COLORADO 80538

Josh
Typewriter
970.669.3737

Josh
Typewriter
JOSH@TFGDESIGN.COM



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING  
INFORMATION 

 



 AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Johnstown Planning and Zoning Commission 
FROM: John Franklin, Town Planner 
DATE: For December 12, 2018 
SUBJECT: Preliminary Plat and Preliminary Site Development Plan – 

Vista Commons PUD 
  

PROPERTY DATA: 
Applicant:  Vista Ag, LLC 
Owner(s):   Same 
Location:   North of Hwy 60 and west of High Plains Blvd. 
Property Size: 149± acres 
Current Zoning/Land Use(s):  PUD- MU Planned Unit Development – 
Mixed Use 
Surrounding Zoning/Current Land Use: 

North:  Great Plains PUD/ agriculture  
 South: Johnstown Commercial PUD/State Hwy 60, agriculture 

East:   High Plains Blvd., SF-1 Rocksbury Ridge / single family 
            residential 
West:  Gateway PUD, I-25 east frontage road, commercial   

 
Comprehensive Plan Designation:  Gateway Center: Commercial, 
Employment, Residential  
 
Summary of Application: This is a request for approval of a preliminary 
subdivision plat and preliminary site development plan for commercial, 
employment and mixed density residential, with private neighborhood parks, 
open space and trails.  
 
The plan envisions a 14.2 acre commercial center, and 22.9 acres of mixed 
use including multi-family, retail and office uses. A 13.4-acre business/tech 
park, and 17.2 acre commercial/light industrial are proposed. Private open 
space constitutes approximately 36.3 acres (24%). 
 
115 single family lots are planned, which range in size from 6000 sf. to over 
7000 sf in area. Minimum dwelling size is not proposed – the Town-wide 
Guidelines call for 1400 sf minimum. 36 attached single family units are 
proposed on 5.67 acres at a density of approximately 6 units per acre. 360 



 2 

multi-family units are proposed at a density of 14 units per acre. Multi-family 
may be integrated with commercial uses. 
 
Prior Actions: The property was annexed and zoned PUD-MU in 2000 as 
the Pratt Technology Campus Annexation. Special Provisions in the 
Annexation Agreement provides for reimbursement to the Town for a portion 
of the Town’s cost to install the Gateway water main, and Phase 1 sanitary 
sewer. An Outline Development Plan (ODP) and special provisions were part 
of the approved annexation and zoning. 
  
A Water and Sewer Service Agreement was approved in 2001, based upon 
the estimated demand of a commercial and light industrial development. 
In 2011 and again in 2016 the Synergy wells and tank battery were approved 
with the requirement for evergreen trees and berm screening. 
 
In 2017 the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map, and the ODP (copy 
attached) were amended to include residential uses.  
 
 

Technical Analysis 
Relationship to Town Vision and Strategic Plan:  The community 
envisions opportunities for commercial, employment and a range of housing 
opportunities. The community values many parks, areas of open space, and 
a network of connecting trails and paths, and recreation opportunities for all 
ages. 
 
Public Health and Safety Impacts: Major roadways, and oil and gas 
development and transmission pipelines on or adjoining the property should, 
and appear to, have appropriate separation and/or screening from 
development. 
 
Water:  The 20” Gateway water main runs through the northern part of the 
property. A 12” water main is located in High Plains Blvd. Water mains will 
be sized and looped to provide adequate pressure and redundancy. Non-
potable irrigation directly from a ditch is not proposed at this time.  
 
Sanitary sewer: The property is located in the Central Wastewater 
Treatment Plant service area, within a gravity sewer sub-basin served by the 
North Gateway Interceptor. The Gateway interceptor is planned to extend to 
the Central Wastewater Treatment Plant, but currently the interceptor main 



 3 

extends only to Colorado Blvd. A temporary lift station then connects the 
Gateway Interceptor to the West Side Sewer. The addition of residential units 
to the land use plan may affect the capacity of the Gateway Interceptor 
Sewer and temporary lift station. The capacity of the West Side Sewer is 
affected by the temporary flows from the Clearview Interceptor and Lift 
Station. 
 
Stormwater: The property is within the two drainage sub-basins, and 
consequently there are two private, sub-basin stormwater detention ponds 
proposed in the northeast and southeast corner of the property. The detained 
runoff will be released at historic rate. A Stormwater Development Fee of 
$1100 per acre will be due with each final plat. 
 
Traffic, access and streets: Primary access is planned from State 
Highway 60 by way of the relocated East I-25 Frontage Road and by High 
Plains Blvd. Access to Hwy 60 is subject to a Colorado Department of 
Transportation (CDOT) Access Permit. Traffic signals are planned on Hwy 
60 at the relocated East Frontage Road and High Plains Blvd., subject to 
CDOT approval. The developer will be responsible to install a signal if 
immediately warranted, or for a proportionate share of signal costs for the 
future signals. The Town’s Traffic Engineer has reviewed the preliminary 
traffic study – comments are included. Collector and local streets shall 
conform to Town standards. According to CDOT (see comments) the Hwy 
60 Access Control Plan identifies the Major Collector access to Hwy 60 as 
restricted. 
 
Mineral Interests and Operations: Mineral interests are owned by 
Anadarko Petroleum Corporation and K.P. Kauffman Company, Inc. There 
are no known surface use agreements regarding drilling operations which 
would affect the property. 
 
A liquid petroleum pipeline (Kanab) extends north and south through the 
middle of the property. An open space buffer is proposed over and to each 
side of the pipeline. The pipeline company will need to grant approval of utility 
and street crossings and any improvements within their right of way. 
 
Fiber-Optic Conduit: An AT&T communication line runs north-south 
through the property. The Developer will need AT&T approval of crossings 
of the line. 
 



 4 

Parks and Open Space:  Private parks, open space and trails are proposed. 
An internal trails system is proposed and will be maintained as private open 
space, with connections where available to nearby local and regional trails.  
 
Schools: The property is within the RE5-J School District. No school site is 
proposed. Unless a site is dedicated, a cash-in lieu of school site dedication 
will be due with building permits. The developer will need to work with the 
School District to provide bus stops as needed. 
 
Design standards: The proposed preliminary plan includes design 
standards for each land use element and common elements such as 
landmark and entry signs. 
  
Landscaping: A considerable amount of native grass is proposed, and is 
subject to more detail review. The highly visible arterial corridors will have 
irrigated lawn and trees/shrubs. Landscaping shall comply with Johnstown 
Landscape Standards and Specifications.  
 
Fencing and Screening:  Noted in the Plan. The fencing is consistent with 
Town-wide design Guidelines and features a 6’ perimeter fence with 
masonry column at 100’ spacing, and rail fence along open space.  
 
Lighting:  Decorative parks and trails lighting and signage is recommended. 
 
Street Furniture: Noted in the Plan 
 
Signage:  A major, landmark-style entry signage is proposed near the 
Interchange. Entry signs are also proposed. 
 
Phasing:  A general development phasing plan is proposed. Each specific 
phase will be evaluated for operational function at time of final plat. 
 
Metropolitan Districts: The developer intends to seek Town approval of a 
metropolitan district to finance infrastructure. The Town has a model 
metropolitan district service plan. 
 
Attachments:  Application, preliminary plat, preliminary plan, referral 
comments. 
 



 5 

Municipal Code Review Provisions: reference Town PUD and 
Subdivision regulations. 
 
Crucial Referral Responses: The water and sanitary sewer infrastructure 
serving the property may need improvements at some time to serve the 
development as it builds out.   
 

Staff Report 
 
Technical Findings: The purpose of the preliminary plat process is to 
evaluate all known impacts and constraints that development may encounter 
on a specific property. Such concerns will either be resolved, or addressed 
as special requirements at time of final plat(s).  

1. The property is annexed and zoned for residential, commercial and 
employment development. 

2. The preliminary site development plan is generally consistent with the 
Pratt Property Outline Development Plan, as amended. 

3. The existing Town water system serving the property may not have 
sufficient capacity at buildout of the development to meet the property’s 
fire flow requirements. Additional storage and pumping capacity may 
be required. Additional water rights may also be required for buildout. 
With each final subdivision application a raw water demand study and 
water system analysis must be provided. As a variance to standards 
due to the AT&T easement, lots along Street ‘E’ may be served from 
the rear. 

4. Sufficient capacity in the current interceptor sewer system does not 
appear to exist to serve the planned uses at buildout. Improvements, 
by other developments, to the downstream system may occur in the 
near future. With each final subdivision a capacity analysis must be 
provided. 

5. The proposed street classifications are acceptable, subject to further 
design review, including requested variances. 

6. Access to Hwy 60 is subject to the Access Control Plan and CDOT 
approval. 

 
Staff Recommendation:  
Preliminary Plat and Preliminary Site Development Plan: The Commission 
should consider recommending approval with conditions, including: 

1. Comments from Town staff, Town Engineer, Traffic Engineer and 



 6 

outside agencies including CDOT, Johnstown Fire District and RE- 5J 
School District shall be resolved, or addressed as special development 
provisions in the public improvement development agreement(s) 
presented to Town Council with the Final Plat(s) for consideration. 

2. Variances to standards shall follow the recommendations of the Town 
Engineer and Traffic Engineer. The collector street parking variance 
will be considered for the adjoining multi-family if adequate off-street 
parking for commercial uses is provided and sightlines on the curved 
road are sufficient.   

3. Street names for the overall property shall be provided by the 
developer for Town approval with first final plat. 
 
 
 
 

  



SUMMARY MINUTES 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2018 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

450 S. PARISH AVE. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Vice Chair Montez opened the meeting at 7:00 pm. 
2. ROLL CALL: Present were Commissioners Kiovsky, Montez, Kingsolver and Grentz. 
Absent was Commissioners Eady and Storms.  
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: None. 
4. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  

A. Preliminary Plat and Preliminary Development Plan – Vista Commons PUD: Vice 
Chair Montez opened the hearing at 7:02pm. Town Planner Franklin introduced the item 
and presented the staff’s report. Applicant’s Representatives Josh McCairn, Chris 
Messersmith and Sean Keller discussed the request and answered questions from the 
Commissioners. 
Commissioner questions: 

• How tall will the multi-family be? (3-storey) 
• Water rights are not sufficient how will that be managed? (Phased development with 
• adequate water) 
• Are you coordinating with the ditch companies? (Yes) 
• Time frame for development? (2019-2020) 
• Is underground stormwater feasible? (Yes, constructed on constrained sights in many 

cities) 
• You will respond to the Fire District turn radii comment? (Yes, the radii will be 

revised) 
• Oil and Gas facility nearby – have you analyzed emissions? (No, but berms and trees 

will 
• help divert releases from proposed homes) 

Vice Chair Montez called for public comment. 
     Public Comment: None 

Vice Chair Montez closed the hearing at 7:55 pm. and called for discussion and motions. 
Motion by Commissioner Kingsolver, seconded by Commissioner Grentz that the 
Commission recommend approval of the Vista Commons preliminary subdivision plat with 
the following condition(s): 
1. Comments from Town staff, Town Engineer, Traffic Engineer and outside agencies 
including CDOT, Johnstown Fire District and RE- 5J School District shall be resolved, or 
addressed as special development provisions in the public improvement development 
agreement(s) presented to Town Council with the Final Plat(s) for consideration. 
2. Variances to standards shall follow the recommendations of the Town Engineer and 
Traffic Engineer. The collector street parking variance will be considered for the adjoining 
multi-family if adequate off-street parking for commercial uses is provided and sightlines on 
the curved road are sufficient.   



 2 

Street names for the overall property shall be provided by the developer for Town approval 
with first final plat. 
Unanimous. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Kingsolver, seconded by Commissioner Grentz to recommend 
approval of the Vista Commons Preliminary development Plan with the following 
condition(s): 
1. Comments from Town staff, Town Engineer, Traffic Engineer and outside agencies 
including CDOT, Johnstown Fire District and RE- 5J School District shall be resolved, or 
addressed as special development provisions in the public improvement development 
agreement(s) presented to Town Council with the Final Plat(s) for consideration. 
2. Variances to standards shall follow the recommendations of the Town Engineer and 
Traffic Engineer. The collector street parking variance will be considered for the adjoining 
multi-family if adequate off-street parking for commercial uses is provided and sightlines on 
the curved road are sufficient.   
Street names for the overall property shall be provided by the developer for Town approval 
with first final plat.  
Unanimous. 
5. NEW BUSINESS: 

         A. Approval of Minutes of November 14, 2018: Motion by Commissioner Kingsolver, 
              seconded by Commissioner Kiovsky to approve the minutes as presented. 
              Unanimous. 
         B. County Referrals: None. 

6. STAFF REPORT: Town Planner Franklin discussed the following: 
    A. Recent Town Council Actions:  

         B. Applications in Review:  
    C. Project and Program Updates: Town Planner Franklin mentioned that this was his 
         last meeting and thanked the Commissioners for their service to the Community 
         Council and his office in 2018. 
7. COMMISSIONERS’ ITEMS:  

A. Welcome new Commissioner Jason Grentz! 
B. The Commissioners agreed to meet with Town Planner Franklin in a lunch/work 

session Wednesday December 19 at 1:00pm at the Huang Garden Restaurant. Mr. Franklin 
will answer questions about the Town’s water and sewer master plans.  
8. ADJOURN: Vice Chair Montez adjourned the meeting at 8:45 pm. 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
Respectfully submitted by John Franklin, Town Planner, as Secretary to the Commission.  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE 
DEVELOPMENT  

PLAN  































 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION 
PLAT   

















 
AGENDA ITEM 10C 
 
 
 
 

AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 
2019 BUDGET  

 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 

AGENDA DATE:  March 18, 2019 
  
ITEM NUMBER:  10C 
 
SUBJECT: FY 2019 Budget Amendment 
 
ACTION PROPOSED: Approve the Proposed FY 2019 Budget Amendments as Presented 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  1. Resolution 2019-09  
 
PRESENTED BY:  Matt LeCerf, Interim Town Manager 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
Below is a series of budget amendment requests for the first quarter of 2019. The changes are 
broken into the various funds with descriptions associated with each of the proposed 
amendments. We also provide the Council approved expenditures and estimated fund balance for 
FY 2019 and the proposed expenditures and estimated fund balance based on the amendment. 
All numbers related to ending fund balances and expenditures have been rounded to the extent 
possible. 
 
General Fund: 

1. Caselle Accounts Receivable Module - $10,000 
a. This Caselle module will allow the Town to automate the Accounts Receivable 

process.  The primary benefits of adding this module are an improvement in 
customer service and overall efficiency.  The AR module will allow us to invoice 
electronically (or on paper), produce monthly statements for customers, track 
developer deposits and developer billbacks, track aging receivables, as well as 
produce revenue/business histories for customers.  The module fully integrates 
with the rest of our financial accounting system allowing us to work in a tighter, 
closed system where items are not being handled or produced outside of the 
system.  This approach provides a solid audit trail and increases security and 
financial control.  

 
2. Furniture & Technology - $18,500 

a. With the addition of new employees in the office, the need for additional desks, 
chairs, filing cabinets, phones, computers and other office equipment has 
increased. Also, there is a small amount of additional cost for the new server 
purchase and installation that are now being realized for the project. 
 

3. Police Vehicle Repairs - $43,000 
a. In 2018, the Town experienced a significant hail storm. As part of the damage 

sustained to the community, our police cars were also exposed to the elements 
causing approximately $43,000 in damage to our police fleet. In 2019, CIRSA 
issued a check to the Town in the amount of $40,879.96 which will be used to 



repair all of the vehicles in the fleet. Accordingly to make these repairs a budget 
amendment is necessary to incur the costs which will be offset mostly by the 
revenue for this item. Repairs should be completed by June 2019. 

 
4. Geographic Information System GIS Startup - $20,000 

a. Inclusion of this appropriation will allow us to get started building our internal 
GIS system. Currently, we have no maps in house for zoning, parcel data, water 
and sewer infrastructure, parks, or other datasets that we need to begin 
developing. This will allow us to purchase the GIS Software, a plotter and GPS 
unit to being mapping feature datasets to build our GIS system. 
  

FY 2019 Approved Expenditures:      $31,260,100 
FY 2019 Approved Estimated Ending Fund Balance:   $24,960,200 
 
FY 2019 Budget Amendment Expenditures:     $90,500 
FY 2019 Budget Total Expenditures with Amendments:   $31,350,600 
FY 2019 Budget Estimated Ending Funds Balance with Amendment: $24,910,580 
 
Water Fund: 

1. DAF Saturator - $55,000 
a. The Council may recall that they approved in August 2018, the purchase of a 

DAF Saturator from Xylem, LLC. This is one of many component necessary to 
increase the overall capacity of the water treatment plant from 5 MGD to 10 
MGD. The unit which was ordered is delayed until approximately March 2019. 
As of the end of FY 2018, only 10% of the cost had been paid and funds were not 
rolled over into FY 2019. Accordingly, a budget amendment is necessary to 
appropriate the funds for this into FY 2019.  
 

2. Home Supply Ditch Company Assessment - $16,000 
a. During the December 2018 annual meeting, stock holders approved an assessment 

stock fee of $175 per share. This was an increase from 2017 by XXX and is 
resulting in an increase in our total assessments due by $16,000. Payment must be 
made to ensure delivery of water and home supply serves as our primary water 
source. 

 
3. Professional Services - $200,000 

a. Two major initiatives are underway related to water that require additional 
funding for professional services. The first is allocation of $100,000 for funding 
related to legal matters to pursue the Pulliam and Home Supply Water change 
cases. Thus far as mentioned during the work session on March 4, costs for the 
data collection has already incurred $32,000 and another similar amount is 
necessary to complete the preliminary work prior to filing the application. The 
remaining balance would be used for costs incurred for the remainder of the fiscal 
year with hopes this amount would be sufficient for FY 2019. 

b. The second major initiative is the exploration of a water system analysis and to 
begin design of the proposed water tower located somewhere on the south side of 



Town. The $100,000 would enable us to begin this work with the hopes this could 
cover the analysis and design components of the water system. 

 
4. Lake Survey - $15,000 

a. The river commission has requested a lake survey for the Johnstown Lake to 
accurately monitor lake levels at Johnstown Lake. 

 
5. Settlement Agreement – $5,854,826 

a. The Town recently entered into a settlement agreement with the TCMD #1 and as 
part of the settlement paid out $9 million. The settlement will come from water 
and sewer based on the number of shares returned back to the Town. 851 shares 
were returned back to the Town.  

 
6. CDPHE Sanitary Survey Compliance – $15,000 

a. Council will recall the letter received from the Colorado Department of Public 
Health and Environment (CDPHE) related to their recent Sanitary Survey. To 
meet the expectations of the State, we need to replace some outdated equipment 
that is not operating properly and is providing us with invalid results. 

 
FY 2019 Approved Expenditures:      $  2,483,900 
FY 2019 Approved Estimated Ending Fund Balance:   $22,822,400 
 
FY 2019 Budget Amendment Expenditures:     $6,255,826 
FY 2019 Budget Total Expenditures with Amendments:   $8,639,726 
FY 2019 Budget Estimated Ending Funds Balance with Amendment: $6,255,826 
 
Sewer Fund: 

1. Settlement Agreement – $3,145,174 
a. The Town recently entered into a settlement agreement with the TCMD #1 and as 

part of the settlement paid out $9 million. The settlement will come from water 
and sewer based on the number of shares returned back to the Town. 561 sewer 
PIF’s were returned back to the Town.  

 
2. Professional Services - $250,000 

a. As the Town is aware, we are exploring the need for sanitary sewer capacity in 
various basins to ensure development in the community. As part of the Town’s 
due diligence, we are reviewing current and future growth of the community. 
 

3. Low Point WWTP Repairs – $10,000 
a. The level sensors at the LP-WWTP are broken and have been for some time. This 

has the ability to overtop the system and needs to be repaired. The MBBR air 
lines have leaks in them impacting the ability to treat properly and can impact the 
life of the bugs. 

 
FY 2019 Approved Expenditures:      $  2,074,000 
FY 2019 Approved Estimated Ending Fund Balance:   $10,571,800 



 
FY 2019 Budget Amendment Expenditures:     $3,180,174 
FY 2019 Budget Total Expenditures with Amendments:   $5,254,174 
FY 2019 Budget Estimated Ending Funds Balance with Amendment: $7,391,626 
 
 
Impact Fee Fund: 

1. J-25, LLC Improvements – $454,648.96 
a. As part of the planned improvements at the Hwy 402 and I-25 Interchange, J-25 

LLC has been working with CDOT on additional improvements to the Frontage 
Road. The improvements are to be paid exclusively by the J-25 LLC and to 
facilitate this scope, the Town is acting as a conduit between CDOT and J-25, 
LLC since CDOT cannot directly contract with a private developer. The cost for 
the planned improvements is $454,648.96 and J-25, LLC has provided payment 
for this work to the Town and we will pass these funds through to CDOT. In order 
to make this payment, a budget amendment for this in both the revenue and 
expenditure is necessary. The pass through results in a $0.00 difference in the 
ending fund balance and will be run through the Transportation Impact Fee line 
item. 
  

2. Great Western RR Improvements at Hwy 34 - $47,190.26 
a. The Town received in 2019 an invoice for services rendered by the Great Western 

Railroad for improvement to the railroad section at Highway 34 and LCR 3. This 
was related to improvements during the Scheels construction project and the 
necessary infrastructure improvements to make this economic development 
project a reality. Services for this were completed by December 2017 based on the 
invoice the Town received in 2019. 

 
FY 2019 Approved Expenditures:      $     101,000 
FY 2019 Approved Estimated Ending Fund Balance:   $18,546,700 
 
FY 2019 Budget Amendment Expenditures:     $      501,840 
FY 2019 Budget Total Expenditures with Amendments:   $      602,804 
FY 2019 Budget Estimated Ending Funds Balance with Amendment: $ 18,499,509 
 
LEGAL ADVICE: 
The resolution was reviewed by the Town Attorney 
 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: 
Funds are available in the various funds to meet the additional expenditures considered in this 
budget amendment. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 



For Approval: 
I move to approve the resolution as presented for the FY 2019 Budget Amendment. 
  
For Denial: 
I move that we deny the resolution as presented for the FY 2019 Budget Amendment 
 
Reviewed and Approved for Presentation: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Town Manager 



  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
RESOLUTION 

 
                        No. 2019-09 
 

  
 
 

  
 
 
       



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-09 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2019 BUDGET AND 
APPROPRIATING ADDITIONAL SUMS OF MONEY TO DEFRAY EXPENSES 
AND TRANSFERS IN EXCESS OF AMOUNTS BUDGETED FOR THE TOWN 

OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO. 
 
WHEREAS, on December 3, 2018, the Town Council, adopted, by Resolution No. 2018-
19, the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget (“2019 Budget”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Johnstown has received a 
recommendation from Town staff to revise the 2019 spending plan for the funds listed 
below and the Town Manager has certified that there are revenues available for 
appropriation in excess of those estimated in the 2019 Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, projects have been evaluated and expenditures are being adjusted for the 
2019 operating and capital budgets; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council agrees to modify appropriated expenditures for the 2019 
Budget, insuring the budget will be in balance and that authorized budgeted expenditures 
are amended, as required by law; and 
 
WHEREAS, money is available in the various funds clearly described below in the form 
of the unappropriated or unrestricted reserves. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, THAT: 
 
Expenditures 
 
Section 1. General Fund:  

Whereas, during 2019, the Town Council of the Town of Johnstown determines 
that the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget General Fund appropriations expense is hereby 
increased from $31,260,100 to $31,350,600 for the purpose of defraying additional 
expenses. 
 
Section 2. Water Fund:  

Whereas, during 2019, the Town Council of the Town of Johnstown determines 
that the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget Water Fund appropriations expense is hereby increased 
from $2,483,900 to $8,639,726 for the purpose of defraying additional expenses. 
 
Section 3. Sewer Fund:  



Whereas, during 2019, the Town Council of the Town of Johnstown determines 
that the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget Sewer Fund appropriations expense is hereby increased 
from $2,074,000 to $5,254,174 for the purpose of defraying additional expenses. 

 
Section 4. Impact Fee Fund:  

Whereas, during 2019, the Town Council of the Town of Johnstown determines 
that the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget Impact Fee Fund appropriations expense is hereby 
increased from $101,000 to $501,840 for the purpose of defraying additional expenses. 
 
PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Town 
Council of the Town of Johnstown on this 18th day of March, 2019. 
 
 
ATTEST  TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 
 
 
By: __________________________  By: __________________________ 
      Diana Seele, Town Clerk                                                   Gary Lebsack, Mayor 
 
 
  



 
AGENDA ITEM 10D 
 
 
 
 

APPROVAL OF 
 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT  
PLAN 

 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE:    March 18, 2019 
 
ITEM NUMBER:   10D 
  
SUBJECT:  Capital Improvement Plan 
  
ACTION PROPOSED:  Approval of the FY 2019 – 2028 Capital Improvement Plan 
 
ATTACHEMENTS:  1. FY 2019 – 2028 Capital Improvement Plan 
    
PRESENTED BY:   Mitzi McCoy, Finance Director 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  A capital improvement plan (CIP) is a community 
planning and fiscal management tool used to coordinate the location, timing and funding of 
capital improvements over a multi-year period.  The goal of the CIP is to create a logical, data-
driven, comprehensive, integrated and transparent capital investment strategy that addresses 
infrastructure needs, reflects community values, supports Town operations, programs and 
services and exemplifies financial and environmental best practices. By providing funding for 
strategic investments at a given time and location, the CIP helps ensure that development occurs 
consistent with a community’s plans and visions. 
 
The development of the Town of Johnstown CIP plays an important role in the Town’s upcoming 
budget process.  The upcoming year of the CIP provides guidelines for near-term capital needs 
that should be considered when building the Town’s 2020 Capital Budget.  The Town of 
Johnstown’s CIP is a ten-year plan that attempts to identify the needs of the community and 
indicates where the funding will need to originate during that ten-year period.  In general, only 
projects/items that cost more than $5,000 and have a useful life in excess of three years are 
included in the Town’s CIP.  Capital improvements refer to major, non-recurring physical 
expenditures such as land, buildings, public infrastructure, equipment and vehicles.  The Town’s 
CIP plan also includes some staffing projections in specific departments to help substantiate 
increased needs for additional equipment and vehicles.  The CIP is reviewed and updated on an 
annual basis.   
 
The CIP was developed with input from each department and their respective teammates within 
each department. We believe this document represents the needs of the organization for the 
benefit of the community. It is important to keep in mind that this is a living document as 
priorities and conditions can change from time to time – (example September 2013 floods) based 
on realized weaknesses in the various infrastructure types. 
 
LEGAL ADVICE:  
Not Applicable 



FINANCIAL ADVICE: The development and implementation of a capital improvement plan is 
important for financial planning and is considered a best practice by the Government Finance 
Officers Association. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  
For Approval: I move to approve the FY 2019 – 2028 Capital Improvement Plan as presented. 
 
For Denial:  I move to deny the FY 2019 – 2028 as presented.  
 
Reviewed: 
 
_________________________ 
Town Manager 



 
 

 
   
 

 
 

 
FY -2019 – 2028 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
PLAN 

 
 



DEPARTMENT PROJECT NAME FUND  FY '19  FY '20  FY '21  FY '22  FY '23  FY '24  FY '25  FY '26  FY '27  FY '28  Total 

Administration Computer Replacement Schedule All Funds 15,000$             15,000$             15,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             165,000$           

Administration Information Technology Need All Funds 25,000$             50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             225,000$           

Administration Copier Replacement General Fund 9,000$               10,000$             19,000$             

Administration Vehicle Replacement General Fund 30,000$             32,000$             62,000$             

Administration Computer Software - Utilities/Financial All Funds 150,000$           150,000$           

79,000$             65,000$             65,000$             20,000$             70,000$             80,000$             52,000$             20,000$             170,000$           621,000$           

Planning Vehicle Replacement General Fund 32,000$             32,000$             

Planning Comprehensive Plan & Updates General Fund 120,000$           60,000$             180,000$           

Planning GIS System Development General Fund 50,000$             50,000$             

Planning Master Park Plan Development Parks 60,000$             30,000$             90,000$             

Planning Trail Development Parks -$                       

Planning Staff General Fund 65,000$             -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       65,000$             

-$                       235,000$           60,000$             -$                       -$                       -$                       60,000$             30,000$             -$                       -$                       385,000$           

Police Copier General Fund 10,000 10,000

Police Range Impact Fund 25,000 25,000

Police Vehicle Replacement Impact Fund 141,700 148,800 156,200 164,000 172,200 180,800 189,800 199,300 1,352,800

Police Vehicle Replacement Equipment Replacement 44,000 70,900 74,400 78,100 82,000 86,100 90,400 94,900 99,700 104,700 825,200

Police UTV Impact fund 28,200 28,200

Police Body Cameras and Storage (Axon-20) Impact Fund 19,500 19,500

Police K-9 Impact Fund 21,400 21,400

Police Police Department Expansion Impact Fund 800,000 800,000

Police Civilian Employee General Fund 44,970 44,970

Police New Officer's General Fund 227,300 77,700 163,000 158,800 179,700 188,700 183,800 208,100 250,800 1,637,900

88,970$             480,800$           1,100,900$        425,500$           404,800$           438,000$           459,900$           468,500$           507,100$           355,500$           4,764,970$        

Parks   Park Mowers Equipment Replacement Fund 17,000$             20,000$             25,000$             25,000$             87,000$             

Parks   

Sunrise Park Replace Playground Equipment 

and Pour in Place Conservation Trust Fund 70,000$             70,000$             

Parks   

Rolling Hills Park Replace Playground 

Equipment and Pour In Place Conservation Trust Fund 90,000$             90,000$             

Parks   

Hays Park Replace Playground Equipment 

and Pour in Place Conservation Trust Fund 100,000$           100,000$           

17,000$             -$                       70,000$             20,000$             -$                       90,000$             25,000$             -$                       100,000$           25,000$             347,000$           

Planning Total

Parks Total

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

2019 - 2028 Capital Improvement Plan

PROJECTS BY DEPARTMENT

Police Total

Administration Total

Capital Improvement 2019-2028



DEPARTMENT PROJECT NAME FUND  FY '19  FY '20  FY '21  FY '22  FY '23  FY '24  FY '25  FY '26  FY '27  FY '28  Total 

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

2019 - 2028 Capital Improvement Plan

PROJECTS BY DEPARTMENT

Wastewater Sewer Rehabilitation Wastewater  $             70,000  $                       -  $          150,000  $                       -  $          150,000  $                       -  $          200,000  $                       -  $          200,000  $                       - 770,000$           

Wastewater Vehicle Wastewater 19,000$             -$                       -$                       35,000$             -$                       -$                       35,000$             -$                       -$                       35,000$             124,000$           

Wastewater UV - Low Point Wastewater -$                       300,000$           300,000$           

Wastewater Instrumentation/SCADA Wastewater 140,000$           100,000$           -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       240,000$           

Wastewater Low Point Design/Construction (Expansion) Wastewater -$                       100,000$           3,000,000$        3,100,000$        

Wastewater Central Plant Design/Construction (Rebuild) Wastewater 400,000$           -$                       15,000,000$      15,000,000$      30,400,000$      

Wastewater Aeration Wastewater 464,000$           464,000$           

Wastewater Honeywell Filters Wastewater 1,000,000$        1,000,000$        

Wastewater Sewer Interceptor Expansion Wastewater $200,000 4,500,000$        4,700,000$        

Wastewater VacTruck Wastewater 50,000$             50,000$             

893,000$           6,000,000$        3,200,000$        435,000$           150,000$           15,000,000$      15,235,000$      -$                       200,000$           35,000$             41,148,000$      

Cemetery Riding Mower General Fund 19,000$             -$                       20,000$             -$                       -$                       20,000$             -$                       -$                       20,000$             79,000$             

Cemetery Design./ build unused land for graves/roads General Fund -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       100,000$           100,000$           

Cemetery Fence around front/north General Fund 20,000$             -$                       -$                       75,000$             95,000$             

19,000$             20,000$             -$                       20,000$             -$                       -$                       20,000$             175,000$           -$                       20,000$             274,000$           

Water GIS Water / Wastewater Fund 100,000$           50,000$             150,000$           

Water Distribution / Collection Crew Water / Wastewater Fund -$                       100,000$           -$                       100,000$           110,000$           310,000$           

Water Crew Vehicles Water / Wastewater Fund 24,000$             -$                       24,000$             -$                       24,000$             -$                       24,000$             -$                       24,000$             -$                       120,000$           

Water Backhoe Replacement Multiple Fund 180,000$           180,000$           

Water Filter Expansion Design/Build Water Fund 30,000$             200,000$           230,000$           

Water VacTruck Water Fund 100,000$           -$                       100,000$           

Water South Water Tank Design/Build (1M. Gal) Water Fund 100,000$           2,000,000$        2,100,000$        

Water Valve Exerciser Water Fund 20,000$             20,000$             

Water Waterline Replacement Water Fund -$                       200,000$           -$                       200,000$           -$                       200,000$           -$                       200,000$           200,000$           200,000$           1,200,000$        

Water Instrumentation/SCADA Water Fund 50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             250,000$           

Water Saturator Water Fund 60,000$             60,000$             

Water Pipe Gallery Water Fund 90,000$             90,000$             

Water Hillsbourough Ditch to Waterplant Design/Build Water Fund 40,000$             1,500,000$        150,000$           1,690,000$        

Water Raw Water Pipe line to Plant Design / Build Water Fund 100,000$           15,000,000$      15,000,000$      15,000,000$      45,100,000$      

Water Raw Water Acquisition Water Fund 750,000$           750,000$           750,000$           750,000$           750,000$           3,750,000$        

364,000$           3,360,000$        1,924,000$        1,220,000$        174,000$           15,950,000$      15,184,000$      15,950,000$      274,000$           950,000$           55,350,000$      Water Total

Wastewater Total

Cemetery Total

Capital Improvement 2019-2028



DEPARTMENT PROJECT NAME FUND  FY '19  FY '20  FY '21  FY '22  FY '23  FY '24  FY '25  FY '26  FY '27  FY '28  Total 

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

2019 - 2028 Capital Improvement Plan

PROJECTS BY DEPARTMENT

Streets Jay Ave overlay

Street Fund/Impact Fee Fund/ 

Capital Fund 88,000$             88,000$             

Streets 4th Street overlay

Street Fund/Impact Fee Fund/ 

Capital Fund 182,600$           182,600$           

Streets Hawthorne Ave overlay

Street Fund/Impact Fee Fund/ 

Capital Fund 190,650$           190,650$           

Streets Sidewalk Replacement Capital Fund 27,000$             27,000$             30,000$             30,000$             30,000$             35,000$             35,000$             35,000$             40,000$             40,000$             329,000$           

Streets Curb Gutter Replacement repair Storm Water Fund 70,000$             70,000$             75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             80,000$             80,000$             80,000$             85,000$             85,000$             775,000$           

Streets Street Maintenance Program

Street Fund/Impact Fee Fund/ 

Capital Fund 263,000$           1,040,000$        790,000$           790,000$           850,000$           950,000$           900,000$           925,000$           975,000$           975,000$           8,458,000$        

Streets Bridge Repair & Maintenance Street & Storm Water Fund 100,000$           100,000$           100,000$           100,000$           100,000$           500,000$           

Streets Alley Overlay Program

Street Fund/Impact Fee Fund/ 

Capital Fund 100,000$           100,000$           100,000$           100,000$           400,000$           

Streets LCR 3 Impact Fee Fund 2,500,000$        100,000$           2,600,000$        

Streets WCR 50 Impact Fee Fund 1,300,000$        100,000$           1,400,000$        

Streets WCR 46 Impact Fee Fund 3,750,000$        3,750,000$        

Streets 2 Ton Plow Truck Equipment Replacement Fund 75,000$             80,000$             155,000$           

Streets Pickup/Utility Truck Equipment Replacement Fund 45,000$             45,000$             50,000$             140,000$           

Streets Front End Loader Equipment Replacement Fund 250,000$           250,000$           

Streets Road Grader Equipment Replacement Fund 300,000$           300,000$           

Streets 5 Ton Plow Truck Equipment Replacement Fund 175,000$           175,000$           350,000$           

Streets Roller for Street Repair Equipment Replacement Fund 50,000$             60,000$             110,000$           

Streets Street Sweeper Equipment Replacement Fund 240,000$           260,000$           500,000$           

Streets VacTruck Equipment Replacement Fund 50,000$             50,000$             

Streets 821,250$           2,872,000$        1,220,000$        3,615,000$        1,055,000$        1,165,000$        1,350,000$        1,270,000$        5,450,000$        1,710,000$        20,528,250$      

2,203,220$        13,046,800$      7,639,900$        5,800,500$        1,803,800$        32,713,000$      32,413,900$      17,945,500$      6,551,100$        3,265,500$        123,418,220$    TOTALS

Capital Improvement 2019-2028



 
AGENDA ITEM 10E 
 
 
 
 

WATER AND WASTEWATER 
 

TAP FEE INCREASE 
 



  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
RESOLUTION 

 
                        No. 2019-11 
 

  
 
 

  
 
 
       



 
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-11 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, WATER 

ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE, INCREASING THE WATER TAP FEES SET FORTH IN 
SECTION 13-42(d) OF THE JOHNSTOWN MUNICIPAL CODE, AND OF THE TOWN 

OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, SEWER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE, INCREASING 
THE SEWER TAP FEES SET FORTH IN SECTION 13-27 OF THE JOHNSTOWN 

MUNICIPAL CODE 
 
    WHEREAS, the Town of Johnstown, Colorado, Water Activity Enterprise (the “Water 
Enterprise”), is a duly created enterprise, as that term is defined in Article X, Section 20 of the 
Colorado Constitution; and  
 
    WHEREAS, the Town of Johnstown, Colorado, Sewer Activity Enterprise (the “Sewer 
Enterprise”), is a duly created enterprise, as that term is defined in Article X, Section 20 of the 
Colorado Constitution; and  
 
    WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Johnstown (“Town”) acts as the governing 
body of the Water Enterprise and Sewer Enterprise; and  
 

Water Tap Fees 
 
    WHEREAS, the Town, acting by and through the Water Enterprise, imposes water fees for 
both usage and impact connection pursuant to Article III of Chapter 13 of the Johnstown 
Municipal Code; and  
 
    WHEREAS, the Town charges water usage fees on an incremental tiered rate structure and 
charges impact fees at the time of connection to the potable water system; and  
 
    WHEREAS, on March 18, 2019, the Town Manager and the Town Finance Director 
presented a Pro Forma related to the Town’s water system to Town Council, projecting both 
revenue and expenditures requirements through the 2028 calendar year based on the previous 
and anticipated costs of providing water service and the anticipated changes due to price 
escalation and increased levels of service, including the increased cost of operation and 
maintenance and the financing of proposed water system improvements; and 
  
    WHEREAS, in addition, the Town Manager and the Town Finance Director presented Town 
Council with a proposed 10 Year Water Capital Improvement Plan 2019 – 2028 establishing that 
significant capital improvements are needed throughout the Town’s water system; and  
 
    WHEREAS, collectively, the Pro Forma and 10 Year Water Capital Improvement Plan 
(“Water Pro Forma”) are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A; and  
 
    WHEREAS, the Water Pro Forma indicates that current revenues are not sufficient to meet 
the anticipated water expenditures because the 10 Year Water Capital Improvement Plan calls 



for over fifty-five million dollars ($55,000,000) in improvements to the water system over the 
next ten (10) years, many of which are outlined in Town of Johnstown Master Plan for water; 
and 
 
    WHEREAS, based on its analysis, Town Staff recommends water tap fees be increased by ten 
percent (10%); and 
 

Sewer Tap Fees 
 
    WHEREAS, the Town, acting by and through the Sewer Enterprise, imposes sewer fees for 
both usage and impact connection pursuant to Article II of Chapter 13 of the Johnstown 
Municipal Code; and  
 
    WHEREAS, the Town charges sewer usage fees on a flat rate structure and charges impact 
fees at the time of connection to the sanitary sewer system; and 
     
    WHEREAS, on March 18, 2019, the Town Manager and the Town Finance Director 
presented a Pro Forma related to the Town’s wastewater system to Town Council, projecting 
both revenue and expenditures requirements through the 2028 calendar year based on the 
previous and anticipated costs of providing wastewater services and the anticipated changes due 
to price escalation and increased levels of service, including the increased cost of operation and 
maintenance and the financing of proposed wastewater system improvements; and 
 
   WHEREAS, in addition, the Town Manager and the Town Finance Director presented Town 
Council with a proposed 10 Year Wastewater Capital Improvement Plan 2019 – 2028 
establishing that significant capital improvements are needed throughout the Town’s wastewater 
system; and  
 
    WHEREAS, collectively, the Pro Forma and 10 Year Water Capital Improvement Plan 
(“Wastewater Pro Forma”) are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 
B; and  
 
    WHEREAS, the Wastewater Pro Forma indicates that current revenues are not sufficient to 
meet the anticipated wastewater expenditures because the 10 Year Wastewater Capital 
Improvement Plan calls for over forty-one million dollars ($41,000,000) in improvements to the 
wastewater system over the next ten (10) years, many of which are outlined in Town of 
Johnstown Master Plan for sewer; and 
 
    WHEREAS, based on its analysis, Town Staff recommends that the sewer tap fee for “In-
Town” residential sewer taps be increased by twenty percent (20%); and  
 
    WHEREAS, the Town Council recognizes that the rate changes recommended above, while 
not predicated on comparison, are noticeably lower than most communities in the northern front 
range area; and 
 
    WHEREAS, the Town Council reaffirms the increases of water and wastewater tap fees for 
the 2020 calendar year for meter sizes that are 1” or larger based on Resolution 2015-20 and 
Resolution 2014-15 respectively, and does not hereby seek to further increase those tap fees; and 



     
    WHEREAS, based on the recommendation of the Town Manager and the Town Finance 
Director and the Water Pro Forma and the Sewer Pro Forma projecting revenues and 
expenditures of the water system and the wastewater system, the Town Council desires to 
increase the water tap fees and the sewer tap fees; and 
 
    WHEREAS, Section 13-51 of the Johnstown Municipal Code permits the amendment of 
water and sewer tap fees by resolution of the Town Council; and  
 
    WHEREAS, the Town Council deems this Resolution to be in the best interests of the Town 
of Johnstown.      
 
     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, acting as the governing body of the TOWN OF 
JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, WATER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE, and the governing 
body of the TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, SEWER ACTIVITY 
ENTERPRISE, that water and sewer tap fees be adjusted under Chapter 13 of the Johnstown 
Municipal Code as follows: 
 
     Section 1.  Section 13-42 (d) of the Johnstown Municipal Code shall be amended to read as 
follows:   

Section 13-42. Rates and charges, meters generally. 

(d)   Potable water tap fee. The water tap fee shall be six thousand four hundred thirty seven 
dollars ($6,437.00) for a three-quarter-inch meter. In addition, the tap fee schedule shall be 
revised for the larger meters to be based on the meter capacity of the larger meters in 
relation to the three-quarter-inch meters, as determined by the American Water Works 
ratings. In addition, since the water use and peak rates of use from the larger meters can vary 
widely from one (1) customer to another depending on the type of customer, the fees for the 
larger meters (four [4] inches through eight [8] inches) shall be determined on a case-by-
case basis to reflect the individual needs of those users. The fees are summarized in the 
following table:  

Water Tap Fees  
 

         WATER TAP FEES 
    2019 2020 2019 2020 

Meter Size 
Ratio to 

3/4" In-Town In-Town 
Out of 
Town 

Out of 
Town 

3/4" 1 $6,437.00 $6,437.00 $7,920 $7,920 
1" 1.7 $9,949.50 $10,247.98 $12,000 $12,360 

1-1/2" 3.3 $19,313.73 $19,893.14 $24,000 $24,720 
2" 5.3 $31,019.02 $31,949.59 $38,400 $39,552 
3" 11.7 $68,475.96 $70,530.23 $85,333 $87,892.99 
4" 21 Negotiable Negotiable Negotiable Negotiable 
6" 46.7 Negotiable Negotiable Negotiable Negotiable 
8" 80 Negotiable Negotiable Negotiable Negotiable 

 



Section 2.  Section 13-27 of the Johnstown Municipal Code shall be amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 13-27. Sewer tap fees. 

The sewer tap fee schedule is determined in accordance with the meter capacity as 
recommended for the water meters. Water use and wastewater flows from the larger meters 
can vary widely from one (1) customer to another, depending on the type of customer. 
Consequently, the fees for the larger meters (four [4] inches through eight [8] inches) shall 
be determined on a case-by-case basis to reflect the individual needs of those users. Fees are 
summarized in the following table:  

Sewer Tap Fees  
 

   SEWER TAP FEES 
    2019 2020 

Meter Size 
Ratio to 

3/4" In-Town In-Town 
3/4" 1 $5,280 $5,280 
1" 1.7 $7,480 $7,650 

1-1/2" 3.3 $14,520 $14,850 
2" 5.3 $23,320 $23,850 
3" 11.7 $51,480 $52,650 
4" 21 Negotiable Negotiable 
6" 46.7 Negotiable Negotiable 
8" 80 Negotiable Negotiable 

 
     Section 3.  Repealer. All resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with this resolution are 
hereby repealed, provided that such repealer shall not repeal the repealer clauses of such 
resolution nor revive any resolution thereby. 
 
       PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Johnstown, acting as the governing body of the Water Activity Enterprise and Sewer Activity 
Enterprise, this 18th day of March, 2019. 
 

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 
WATER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE & 
SEWER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE                  

ATTEST 
 
 
By: __________________________  By: __________________________ 
         Diana Seele, Town Clerk                       Gary Lebsack, Mayor 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A  
WATER PRO FORMA  



Town of Johnstown

Water Pro Forma ‐ 2019
Exhibit A

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Totals

Beg Cash Balance 17,239,138 20,671,483 23,276,463 19,575,189 19,589,108 20,606,954 22,408,622 24,752,843 12,094,387 16,072,845 1,549,943 1,190,385

Tap Fees ‐ Impact 1,577,923 1,452,449 1,496,023 1,892,537 2,162,899 1,905,411 1,132,947 682,343 643,720 643,720 643,720 643,720 17,903,232

Customer Revenues 2,710,234 2,947,989 3,124,869 3,457,667 3,838,011 4,260,192 4,622,308 4,945,870 5,292,080 5,662,526 6,058,903 6,543,615 60,454,304

Misc. Revenues 549,543 1,270,170 596,380 217,000 230,020 243,821 252,355 257,402 262,550 267,801 273,157 281,352 6,026,144

Grant Revenues 1,000,000 1,000,000 2,000,000

Bond Revenues 18,000,000 18,000,000

Total Revenues 4,837,700 5,670,609 5,217,272 6,567,204 6,230,930 6,409,424 6,007,610 6,885,615 24,198,351 6,574,047 6,975,780 7,468,687 104,383,680

Admin Costs 161,248 213,531 219,937 226,535 233,331 240,331 247,541 254,967 262,616 270,495 278,610 286,968 3,227,794

Operational Costs 1,060,860 2,504,643 2,579,783 2,966,750 3,055,753 3,147,425 3,241,848 3,339,103 3,439,276 3,542,455 3,648,728 3,758,190 38,406,562

Capital Costs 183,247 347,454 264,000 3,360,000 1,924,000 1,220,000 174,000 15,950,000 15,184,000 15,950,000 2,074,000 950,000 58,540,090

Transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 947,488

Plant Investment Fee Cert. 0 0 5,854,826 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,854,826

Debt Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,334,000 1,334,000 1,334,000 1,334,000

Total Expenses 1,405,355 3,065,628 8,918,546 6,553,285 5,213,084 4,607,756 3,663,389 19,544,071 20,219,893 21,096,949 7,335,338 6,329,158 106,976,761

Net  3,432,345 2,604,980 ‐3,701,274 13,919 1,017,846 1,801,668 2,344,221 ‐12,658,456 3,978,458 ‐14,522,902 ‐359,558 1,139,529 ‐2,593,081

Ending Cash Balance 20,671,483 23,276,463 19,575,189 19,589,108 20,606,954 22,408,622 24,752,843 12,094,387 16,072,845 1,549,943 1,190,385 2,329,914 ‐2,593,081

Multipliers: Impact Fee Rate Increase 0.000 1.100 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

Pop Growth 0.030 294 336 296 176 106 100 100 100 100

Tap Fee 5,852 6,437 6,437 6,437 6,437 6,437 6,437 6,437 6,437 6,437

Rate Increase 3.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Pop Growth 3.00% 5.65% 6.00% 6.00% 3.50% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 3.00%

Expenses Inflation Oper 3.00% 15.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

Inflation Adm 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

Potential Impact Fee Per SFE: 5,852 6,437 6,437 6,437 6,437 6,437 6,437 6,437 6,437 6,437

Assumptions: ‐ 10% increase in the tap fee in 2020

‐ 5% increase every year in usage rates

‐ 15% increase in operational costs in 2020 with 3% increase each year thereafter

‐ 20 year bond

Monthly

Usage



Exhibit A

DEPARTMENT PROJECT NAME FUND  FY '19  FY '20  FY '21  FY '22  FY '23  FY '24  FY '25  FY '26  FY '27  FY '28  Total 

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

2019 - 2028 Capital Improvement Plan

WATER

Water GIS Water / Wastewater Fund 100,000$           50,000$             150,000$              

Water Distribution / Collection Crew Water / Wastewater Fund -$                       100,000$           -$                       100,000$           110,000$           310,000$              

Water Crew Vehicles Water / Wastewater Fund 24,000$             -$                       24,000$             -$                       24,000$             -$                        24,000$             -$                         24,000$             -$                       120,000$              

Water Backhoe Replacement Multiple Fund 180,000$           180,000$              

Water Filter Expansion Design/Build Water Fund 30,000$             200,000$           230,000$              

Water VacTruck Water Fund 100,000$           -$                       100,000$              

Water South Water Tank Design/Build (1M. Gal) Water Fund 100,000$           2,000,000$        2,100,000$           

Water Valve Exerciser Water Fund 20,000$             20,000$                

Water Waterline Replacement Water Fund -$                       200,000$           -$                       200,000$           -$                       200,000$            -$                       200,000$             200,000$           200,000$           1,200,000$           

Water Instrumentation/SCADA Water Fund 50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             250,000$              

Water Saturator Water Fund 60,000$             60,000$                

Water Pipe Gallery Water Fund 90,000$             90,000$                

Water Hillsbourough Ditch to Waterplant Design/Build Water Fund 40,000$             1,500,000$        150,000$           1,690,000$           

Water Raw Water Pipe line to Plant Design / Build Water Fund 100,000$           15,000,000$       15,000,000$      15,000,000$        45,100,000$         

Water Raw Water Acquisition Water Fund 750,000$           750,000$           750,000$            750,000$             750,000$           3,750,000$           

364,000$           3,360,000$        1,924,000$        1,220,000$        174,000$           15,950,000$       15,184,000$      15,950,000$        274,000$           950,000$           55,350,000$         Water Total

Capital Improvement 2019-2028



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B  
WASTEWATER PRO FORMA  



Town of Johnstown

Wastewater Pro Forma ‐ 2019
Exhibit B

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Totals

Beg Cash Balance 9,350,229 10,308,566 10,901,997 7,872,794 5,590,353 5,184,633 7,518,527 9,638,688 15,159,853 519,313 1,226,411 1,852,836

Impact Fees 191,240 171,500 171,500 1,865,318 1,774,080 1,562,880 929,280 561,000 528,000 528,000 528,000 528,000 9,778,938

Sewer Expansion Fees 975,200 1,791,200 2,271,200 1,311,200 720,000 560,000 560,000 560,000 560,000 9,308,800

Customer Revenues 1,831,209 1,919,222 2,034,376 2,210,427 2,409,366 2,626,209 2,796,912 2,936,758 3,083,596 3,237,775 3,399,664 3,603,644 37,034,155

Misc. Revenues 77,263 141,338 149,819 162,784 177,434 193,403 205,975 216,273 227,087 238,441 250,363 265,385 2,827,025

Grant Revenues 1,000,000 1,000,000

Bond Proceeds 20,000,000 20,000,000

Total Revenues 2,099,712 2,232,061 2,355,694 6,213,729 6,152,080 6,653,692 5,243,367 24,434,031 4,398,683 4,564,217 4,738,028 4,957,029 79,948,918

Admin Costs 186,617 224,595 231,332 238,272 245,421 252,783 260,367 268,178 276,223 284,510 293,045 301,836 3,713,057

Operational Costs 927,220 1,082,903 1,115,390 1,282,698 1,321,179 1,360,815 1,401,639 1,443,688 1,486,999 1,531,609 1,577,557 1,624,884 18,983,728

Capital Costs 27,538 331,133 893,000 6,000,000 3,200,000 435,000 150,000 15,000,000 15,235,000 0 200,000 35,000 41,645,865

Plant Investment Fee Cert. 3,145,174 3,145,174

Sewer Expansion Costs 975,200 1,791,200 2,271,200 1,311,200 720,000 560,000 560,000 560,000 560,000 9,308,800

Debt Commitments 1,481,000 1,481,000 1,481,000 1,481,000 1,481,000 7,405,000

Total Expenses 1,141,375 1,638,630 5,384,896 8,496,171 6,557,800 4,319,798 3,123,206 18,912,866 19,039,222 3,857,119 4,111,602 4,002,720 84,201,623

Net  958,337 593,431 ‐3,029,202 ‐2,282,441 ‐405,720 2,333,894 2,120,161 5,521,165 ‐14,640,539 707,098 626,425 954,309 ‐4,252,705

Ending Cash Balance 10,308,566 10,901,997 7,872,794 5,590,353 5,184,633 7,518,527 9,638,688 15,159,853 519,313 1,226,411 1,852,836 2,807,145

Multipliers: Impact Fees Rate Increase 0.000 1.200 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

SFE's 0.000 294 336 296 176 106 100 100 100 100.0

Tap Fee 4,400 5,280 5,280 5,280 5,280 5,280 5,280 5,280 5,280 5,280

Rate Increase 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

Pop Growth 3.00% 5.65% 6.00% 6.00% 3.50% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 3.00%

Expenses Inflation Oper 3.00% 15.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

Inflation Adm 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

Potential Impact Fee Per SFE: 4,400 5,280 5,280 5,280 5,280 5,280 5,280 5,280 5,280 5,280

Assumptions: ‐ 20% increase in the tap fee in 2020

‐ 3% increase every year in usage rates

‐ 15% increase in operational costs in 2020 with 3% increase each year thereafter

‐ 20 year bond

Monthly

Usage



Exhibit B

DEPARTMENT PROJECT NAME FUND  FY '19  FY '20  FY '21  FY '22  FY '23  FY '24  FY '25  FY '26  FY '27  FY '28  Total 

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

2019 - 2028 Capital Improvement Plan

WASTEWATER

Wastewater Sewer Rehabilitation Wastewater  $             70,000  $                      -  $           150,000  $                      -  $           150,000  $                      -  $           200,000  $                      -  $           200,000  $                      - 770,000$           

Wastewater Vehicle Wastewater 19,000$             -$                       -$                       35,000$             -$                       -$                       35,000$             -$                       -$                       35,000$             124,000$           

Wastewater UV - Low Point Wastewater -$                       300,000$           300,000$           

Wastewater Instrumentation/SCADA Wastewater 140,000$           100,000$           -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       240,000$           

Wastewater Low Point Design/Construction (Expansion) Wastewater -$                       100,000$           3,000,000$        3,100,000$        

Wastewater Central Plant Design/Construction (Rebuild) Wastewater 400,000$           -$                       15,000,000$      15,000,000$      30,400,000$      

Wastewater Aeration Wastewater 464,000$           464,000$           

Wastewater Honeywell Filters Wastewater 1,000,000$        1,000,000$        

Wastewater Sewer Interceptor Expansion Wastewater $200,000 4,500,000$        4,700,000$        

Wastewater VacTruck Wastewater 50,000$             50,000$             

893,000$           6,000,000$        3,200,000$        435,000$           150,000$           15,000,000$      15,235,000$      -$                       200,000$           35,000$             41,148,000$      Wastewater Total

Capital Improvement 2019-2028



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMPARATIVE WATER 
AND SEWER TAP FEE CHARTS  



Water Tap Rate Comparison 2019

Charge Rate  Loveland  Ft. Collins*  Longmont*  Johnstown 
 Johnstown 

$300 
 Johnstown

6.83% 
 Berthoud 

 Johnstown 
10% 

 Johnstown 
20% 

 Lafayette  Evans  Windsor  Milliken  CWCWD  Brighton 
 FCLWD/ 
SFCSD 

 Dacono  LTWD  Greeley  Severance  Frederick  Firestone  Erie  Average 

Water Tap Fee 2,800$        3,394$              5,170$              5,852$             6,152$             6,252$             6,330$             6,437$             7,022$             7,800$                      8,258$           9,400$             9,487$        10,000$        10,640$        10,896$        11,000$        11,000$        11,400$        12,200$           12,850$        12,800$        15,080$        11,756$      

* Longmont and Ft. 
Collins based on 7400 
square foot lot

$2,800 

$3,394 

$5,170 

$5,852 

$6,152 
$6,252  $6,330 

$6,437 

$7,022 

$7,800 

$8,258 

$9,400  $9,487 

$10,000 

$10,640 

$10,896 
$11,000  $11,000 

$11,400 

$12,200 

$12,850  $12,800 

$15,080 

 Loveland  Ft. Collins*  Longmont*  Johnstown  Johnstown $300  Johnstown
6.83%

 Berthoud  Johnstown 10%  Johnstown 20%  Lafayette  Evans  Windsor  Milliken  CWCWD  Brighton  FCLWD/ SFCSD  Dacono  LTWD  Greeley  Severance  Frederick  Firestone  Erie

Water Tap Fee Comparison

 Loveland  Ft. Collins*  Longmont*  Johnstown  Johnstown $300  Johnstown
6.83%

 Berthoud  Johnstown 10%  Johnstown 20%  Lafayette  Evans  Windsor  Milliken  CWCWD  Brighton  FCLWD/ SFCSD  Dacono  LTWD  Greeley  Severance  Frederick  Firestone  Erie



2019 Wastewater Tap Rate Comparison

Charge Rate  Ft. Collins*  Longmont*  Windsor  Johnstown  Milliken 
 Johnstown 

10% 
 Johnstown 

$700 
 Johnstown

$800 
 Erie  Loveland 

 Johnstown 
20% 

 Lafayette  Evans  Berthoud 
 St. Vrain 
Sanitation 

 Greeley 
 FCLWD/ 
SFCSD 

 Severance  Brighton  Average 

Sewer Tap Fee 3,537$              4,140$            4,400$            4,400$             4,555$        4,840$             5,100$             5,200$             5,200$          5,230$        5,280$             5,300$            5,434$          5,500$             5,650$           5,700$          6,200$          6,500$             6,583$          5,428$        

$3,537 

$4,140 

$4,400  $4,400 

$4,555 

$4,840 

$5,100 
$5,200  $5,200  $5,230 

$5,280  $5,300 

$5,434 
$5,500 

$5,650 
$5,700 

$6,200 

$6,500 
$6,583 

 Ft. Collins*  Longmont*  Windsor  Johnstown  Milliken  Johnstown 10%  Johnstown $700  Johnstown
$800

 Erie  Loveland  Johnstown 20%  Lafayette  Evans  Berthoud  St. Vrain Sanitation  Greeley  FCLWD/ SFCSD  Severance  Brighton

Sewer Tap Fee Comparison

 Ft. Collins*  Longmont*  Windsor  Johnstown  Milliken  Johnstown 10%  Johnstown $700  Johnstown
$800

 Erie  Loveland  Johnstown 20%  Lafayette  Evans  Berthoud  St. Vrain Sanitation  Greeley  FCLWD/ SFCSD  Severance  Brighton



 
AGENDA ITEM 10F 
 
 
 
 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
TOWN MANAGER 

 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA DATE:  March 18, 2019 
 
ITEM NUMBER:  10F 
 
SUBJECT:  Employment Agreement for Town Manager with Matthew S. LeCerf 
 
ACTION PROPOSED:  Approve Employment Agreement for Town Manager with Matthew S. LeCerf 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Town Attorney, Avi Rocklin  
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Based on direction from Town Council, for consideration is an Employment 
Agreement (“Agreement”) for the Town Manager position with Matthew S. LeCerf (“LeCerf”).  The Agreement 
provides that LeCerf will perform the functions and duties specified by Colorado law, Article 8 of the Home Rule 
Charter for the Town of Johnstown, Section 2.45 of the Johnstown Municipal Code and all other applicable laws, 
ordinances or regulations of the Town of Johnstown and that he will perform all other reasonable functions that 
Town Council assigns to him.  The key provisions of the Agreement are as follows: 

• LeCerf will be paid an annual salary of $160,000.  He will be entitled to merit pay increases and to 
automatic pay increases by, at a minimum amount, the average increase paid to Town employees. 

• LeCerf will be entitled to four weeks vacation per year, with one additional day of vacation accruing over 
the next five years, for a total maximum of five weeks.  

• LeCerf will be entitled to participate in the insurance benefits provided to Town employees, including 
health, dental, vision and life insurance.  He will be entitled to participate in the Town’s 457 Retirement 
Plan and the Town will contribute 9.2355% of his salary into the Plan, as may be adjusted from time to 
time.   

• LeCerf will be paid a monthly stipend of $500 towards his personal vehicle and cell phone expenses.  He 
will be entitled to use a Town purchasing card for travel of approximately fifty (50) miles or more from the 
Town. 

• LeCerf will be employee at will and the Town Council, by a majority vote, will be entitled to terminate him 
at any time with or without cause.   

• If LeCerf is terminated without cause or if he involuntarily terminates his employment (as provided in 
Paragraph 9(b)), then LeCerf will be entitled to 9 months of severance pay upon the signing of the 
Agreement, with an additional month accruing for the next 3 years.  LeCerf will be entitled to health 
insurance, but not to retirement benefits, during his severance pay.  *Council may decide to discuss 
severance pay during the meeting to ensure consensus on this issue. 

• LeCerf will reside in the Town on or before October 1, 2019, and the Town will pay up to $5,000 for his 
moving expenses upon receipt of reasonable and verified costs. 

• Town Council may conduct annual performance evaluations. 
• The Town will pay for LeCerf’s membership in national, regional and local organizations that benefit the 

Town and LeCerf’s travel expenditures related to conferences sponsored by those organizations.   
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
LEGAL ADVICE:  The Town Attorney prepared the Town of Johnstown Employment Agreement for Town 
Manager.   
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
FINANCIAL ADVICE:  The Town Treasurer indicated that sufficient funds are available. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the Town of Johnstown Employment Agreement for Town Manager with 
Matthew S. LeCerf. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
For Approval:  I move to approve the Town of Johnstown Employment Agreement for Town Manager with 
Matthew S. LeCerf and authorize the Mayor to sign it. 
 
For Denial: I move to deny approval of the Town of Johnstown Employment Agreement for Town Manager. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT 



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  
FOR TOWN MANAGER 

 
 THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT FOR TOWN MANAGER (“Agreement”) 
made this _____ day of March, 2019, by and between the TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, 
COLORADO, a home-rule municipal corporation of the State of Colorado (“Town”), and 
MATTHEW S. LECERF (“LeCerf”), collectively (the “Parties”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town desires to employ Matthew S. LeCerf to serve as the Town 
Manager for the Town of Johnstown, Colorado; and 

 
WHEREAS, LeCerf desires to accept employment as the Town Manager for the Town of 

Johnstown, Colorado; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town and LeCerf desire to set forth terms and conditions of the 

employment relationship.    
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants set forth 
herein, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. Employment and Duties.  The Town agrees to employ LeCerf, and LeCerf agrees 
to accept employment, as the Town Manager for the Town of Johnstown to perform the functions 
and duties specified by Colorado law, Article 8 of the Home Rule Charter for the Town of 
Johnstown, Section 2.45 of the Johnstown Municipal Code and all other applicable laws, 
ordinances or regulations of the Town of Johnstown, as adopted and in effect from time-to-time.  
LeCerf further agrees to perform any other legally permissible and proper functions and duties as 
the Town Council of the Town shall assign to him.    

 
2. Compensation.  The Town agrees to pay LeCerf an annual salary of $160,000.00 

for his services as Town Manager, commencing on the effective date of this Agreement, and 
payable in bi-weekly installments in the same manner and at the same time as other employees of 
the Town.  LeCerf’s compensation shall increase each year by, at a minimum, an amount that 
equals the average increase in salaries provided to Town employees, if any.  Pursuant to a 
performance evaluation or otherwise, LeCerf shall also be entitled to merit increases to his salary 
in the discretion of the Town Council.  LeCerf recognizes and agrees that the position of Town 
Manager is an exempt position under the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. §201 et al. (“Act”), 
and corresponding Colorado state statues, rules and regulations, and that LeCerf is not entitled to 
overtime compensation and is not bound by the record keeping provisions of the Act.  
 

3. Personnel Policies, Vacation and Sick Time.  Except as modified herein, LeCerf 
shall be subject to the Town’s Human Resources Policies and Procedures, dated August 4, 2014, 
as may be amended from time-to-time (“Personnel Policies”).  LeCerf shall be entitled to four (4) 
weeks paid vacation per year and to the accrual of an additional vacation day for each year that 
LeCerf works for the Town as the Town Manager, up to and including a maximum of five (5) 



additional days.  LeCerf’s vacation time shall be retroactive to October 15, 2018, and shall accrue 
as set forth in the Personnel Policies.  LeCerf shall be entitled to sick time at the rate and in the 
manner set forth in the Personnel Policies. 
 

4. Insurance Benefits.  LeCerf shall be entitled to the insurance benefits offered to 
other employees of the Town, including health, dental, vision, disability and life insurance 
benefits, as such benefits are in effect from time-to-time.  LeCerf must meet all the terms and 
conditions required by the individual carries, and pay any employee-required amounts in order to 
participate in the insurance programs. 
 

5. Retirement.  The Town offers a 457 Retirement Plan, and agrees to contribute 
9.2355% of LeCerf’s bi-weekly salary toward such retirement benefits for and on behalf of LeCerf, 
as may be amended from time to time in the Personnel Policies, except that the contribution shall 
not decrease below 9.2355% unless there is a decrease applicable to all eligible Town staff.  In 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Town’s 457 Retirement Plan, LeCerf may 
contribute additional amounts toward his retirement benefits.   
 

6. Cell Phone and Vehicle Stipend.  In lieu of a Town issued cell phone and use of a 
Town owned vehicle, LeCerf shall be paid a monthly stipend to be used toward those expenditures 
in the amount of $500.00 per month.  In addition, for out-of-town travel related to Town business 
that is approximately fifty (50) or more miles from the Town, LeCerf shall be entitled to use a 
Town-issued purchasing card to pay for fuel.  LeCerf recognizes and agrees that text messages 
related to Town business may be public records, as defined in C.R.S. § 24-72-202(6), and agrees, 
to the best of his reasonable ability, not to use the text messaging feature of his personal cell phone 
to conduct Town business.  LeCerf further agrees to maintain automobile liability insurance as 
required by Colorado law. 

 
7. Term.  Pursuant to Section 8.1 of the Home Rule Charter for the Town of 

Johnstown, LeCerf shall serve as the Town Manager at the pleasure of the Town Council.  Based 
on that understanding, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from the effective date 
of this Agreement until terminated by either party as provided herein.   
 

8. Termination by Town.  The Town may terminate LeCerf’s employment with the 
Town, and thus terminate this Agreement, at any time, with or without cause, by a majority vote 
of the entire Town Council.  LeCerf recognizes and agrees that any termination of employment is 
not subject to the provisions of C.R.S. § 31-4-307, and hereby waives any rights thereunder.  Upon 
the termination of LeCerf’s employment with the Town, for any reason, LeCerf shall not be 
entitled to the continuation of the Town’s insurance and retirement benefits, set forth in Paragraphs 
4 and 5, except that: (1) if LeCerf is entitled to severance pay as provided in Paragraph 10, then he 
shall be entitled to continuation of health insurance benefits during the period of, but not longer 
than, his severance pay unless and until LeCerf obtains other employment that provides health 
insurance benefits and (2) LeCerf may be entitled to the continuation of health insurance benefits 
at LeCerf’s expense as allowed by law.   
 



9. Termination by LeCerf.   
 

a. LeCerf may voluntarily resign from his employment with the Town, and 
thus terminate this Agreement, at any time, with or without cause, by providing forty-five 
(45) days advanced written notice to the Town.  In such case, LeCerf would not be entitled 
to severance pay as provided in Paragraph 10. 

 
b. If (i) the Home Rule Charter for the Town of Johnstown were amended to 

substantially change, alter or modify the Town Manager position in a manner that 
negatively impacts LeCerf, (ii) the Town were to reduce LeCerf’s compensation, unless 
such reduction is not of a greater  percentage than  the average  reduction for all department 
heads, (iii) LeCerf were to resign following a request, formal or informal, by a majority of 
the Town Council that he resign, or (iv) a final judicial determination were rendered 
holding that the Town is in breach of a material term of this Agreement, then LeCerf would 
be entitled to resign from the position of Town Manager and terminate this Agreement by 
providing forty-five (45) days advanced written notice to the Town and would, absent 
cause to terminate LeCerf, be entitled to receive severance pay as set forth in Paragraph 
10. 

 
10. Severance Pay.  In the event that LeCerf is terminated without cause or that LeCerf 

involuntarily terminates his employment as the Town Manager pursuant to Paragraph 9(b), then 
LeCerf, in addition to accrued vacation and sick time in accordance with the Personnel Policies, 
would be entitled to nine (9) months of severance pay at his then current compensation.  In 
addition, for each of the next three (3) full calendar years that LeCerf works as the Town Manager, 
LeCerf would be entitled to one (1) additional month of severance pay, up to and including a 
maximum of three (3) additional months or, stated differently, up to a maximum of twelve (12) 
months of severance pay.  The severance pay may be paid in monthly salary payments or in one 
lump sum, in the discretion of the Town Council.  Compensation for purposes of severance pay 
shall be deemed to be LeCerf’s annual salary as described in Paragraph 2.  In consideration for, 
and as a condition precedent to, the severance pay, LeCerf shall be required to execute a general 
release, releasing the Town from any and all causes of action, claims and demands which LeCerf 
may have against the Town.      

 
If LeCerf is terminated for cause, regardless of whether LeCerf involuntarily seeks to 

terminate his employment pursuant to Paragraph 9(b), then LeCerf shall not be entitled to 
severance pay.  The term “for cause” shall mean: (i) willful failure to perform the duties set forth 
in this Agreement, in the reasonable judgment of the Town Council; (ii) willful misconduct that is 
injurious to the Town, monetarily or otherwise; (iii) willful violation of reasonable policies, 
standards, directives or orders established by the Town Council; (iv) conduct giving rise to 
unlawful harassment, discrimination or retaliation; (v) public remarks disparaging the Town or the 
Town Council; (vi) breach of a material term of this Agreement pursuant to a final judicial 
determination; (vii) conviction (by entry of judgment at a trial, a plea of guilty or a plea of no 
contest) of a felony or of any crime involving moral turpitude, including without limitation fraud, 



theft, or embezzlement or other illegal or dishonest conduct; or (viii) conduct creating, enabling 
and/or facilitating a hostile or oppressive work environment.   

11. Residency in the Town.  On or before October 1, 2019, LeCerf shall have 
established residency in the Town and shall thereafter maintain such residency during the term of 
his employment as the Town Manager.  The Town agrees to pay up to $5,000.00 of eligible and 
verified expenses towards LeCerf’s relocation costs. 
 

12. Extended Absence.  If LeCerf is permanently disabled or is otherwise unable to 
perform the functions and duties set forth in Paragraph 1 for a period of four (4) successive weeks 
beyond any accrued sick leave, or for twenty (20) working days over a thirty (30) working day 
period, the Town shall have the option to promptly terminate this Agreement.  If so terminated, 
LeCerf shall be compensated for any accrued, but unpaid, benefits and shall be entitled to 
severance pay as described in Paragraph 10. 
 

13. Dues, Subscriptions and Professional Development.  The Town agrees to budget 
and pay for LeCerf’s dues and subscriptions for the reasonable dues, subscriptions, and 
professional fees associated with LeCerf’s participation in national, regional, state, and local 
associations that benefit the Town and for travel expenses related to attendance at conferences, 
programs and seminars sponsored by those organizations. 
 

14. Exclusive Services.  Town recognizes that LeCerf shall render services to the Town 
on a full-time basis, without regard to office hours or the Town’s normal hours of operation and 
must devote a great deal of time outside the normal office hours on business for the Town, and, to 
that end, LeCerf shall be allowed to establish an appropriate work schedule that generally includes 
presence in the office during normal working hours and, absent extraordinary circumstances, 
attendance at Town Council meetings and other appropriate meeting and functions.  As set forth 
in Section 8.2 of the Home Rule Charter for the Town of Johnstown, during the period of 
employment with the Town, LeCerf shall not be an employee of, or perform any services for 
compensation from, any person or entity other than the Town, unless he has first obtained the 
approval of a majority of the entire Town Council. 
 

15. Performance Evaluations.  The Town Council may perform, and LeCerf agrees to 
participate in, periodic evaluations of LeCerf’s performance.   
 

16. Non-Appropriation.  Pursuant to Section 29-1-110, C.R.S., as amended, financial 
obligations of the Town payable as set forth herein, after the current fiscal year, are contingent 
upon funds for that purpose being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made available.  This 
Agreement shall be terminated effective January 1 of the first fiscal year for which funds are not 
appropriated.  In such case, LeCerf shall be entitled to severance pay as set forth in Paragraph 10. 
 

17. Dispute Resolution.  In the event of any dispute arising under this Agreement, the 
Parties shall submit the matter to mediation prior to commencing legal action. The cost of the 
mediation shall be split equally between the Parties. 



 
18. Laws.  The validity, interpretation, performance, and enforcement of this 

Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado, and venue shall be in Weld 
County, Colorado, for any litigation. 
 

19. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be amended or modified except by a 
subsequent written instrument signed by both Parties. 
 

20. Assignment.  Nothing herein shall be construed as giving any rights or benefits 
hereunder to anyone other than the Town and LeCerf.  LeCerf shall not be entitled to transfer or 
assign his interest in this Agreement.   
 

21. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and 
understanding between the Parties and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, written 
or oral. 
 

22. Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement shall be or becomes illegal, invalid 
or unenforceable in whole or in part for any reason, such provision shall be ineffective only to the 
extent of such illegality, invalidity or unenforceability, without invalidating the remainder of such 
provision or the remaining provisions of this Agreement.  If any court of competent jurisdiction 
should deem any covenant herein to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable because its scope is 
considered excessive, such covenant shall be modified so that the scope of the covenant is reduced 
only to the minimum extent necessary to render the modified covenant valid, legal and enforceable. 
 

23. Return of Records. Upon termination of this Agreement, LeCerf shall return to the 
Town all records, notes, documents and other items that were used, created or controlled by LeCerf 
during the term of this Agreement relating to Town business. 
 

24. No Public Official Personal Liability.  Nothing herein shall be construed as creating 
any personal liability on the part of any elected official, officer, employee or agent of the Town. 
 

25. Insurance Coverage.  The Town is insured by the Colorado Intergovernmental Risk 
Sharing Agency (“CIRSA”).  To the extent permitted by law and to the extent provided by the 
Town’s CIRSA coverage, LeCerf shall be defended and indemnified in his actions undertaken in 
his official capacity by the Town and pursuant to the terms of the Colorado Governmental 
Immunity Act, C.R.S. 24-10-101 et seq. (“CGIA”).  LeCerf shall, however, not be indemnified for 
any act or omission that is willful and wanton as those terms are defined in the CGIA.  
 

26. No Presumption.  Each Party acknowledges that it has obtained, or has had the 
opportunity to obtain, the advice of legal counsel of its own choosing in connection with the 
negotiation and execution of this Agreement and with respect to all matters set forth herein.  Each 
Party acknowledges that it has carefully read and reviewed the terms of this Agreement.  Each 
Party acknowledges that the entry into and execution of this Agreement is its own free and 
voluntary act and deed, without compulsion.  The Parties agree that this Agreement reflects the 



joint drafting efforts of all Parties and in the event of any dispute, disagreement or controversy 
arising from this agreement, the Parties shall be considered joint authors and no provision shall be 
interpreted against any Party because of authorship. 
 

27. Headings.  The headings used herein are for convenience purposes only and shall not 
limit the meaning of the language contained herein. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be signed and 
executed on the day and year first written above.   
 
 
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO   MATTHEW S. LECERF 
 
 
By: _____________________________   By: __________________________ 
       Gary Lebsack, Mayor            Matthew S. LeCerf 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By: _____________________________ 
       Diana Seele, Town Clerk 
 


	AM2 21506 Johnstown 331001582 17-HA4-XC-00077-M0004_final.pdf
	AM-2 Exh. B.pdf
	RCO 024 Rev 3- Modifications to Segment 1 EFR Profile (RCP No 34 Rev 1)
	RCO 024 Rev 2 - Modifications to Segment 1 EFR Profile Rev 4_0
	Exhibit G RCO 024_Final_0
	Worksheets
	CDOT
	EFR


	RS&H Scope 2019-01-21 Change order 34 SH402 SE Frontage Road
	RS&H EFR Exhibit A
	Exhibit B_21506ROW_Model_J25_RCP034revised
	RCP No 34- Mods to Seg 1 E Frnt Rd South of SH 402 Prof Mods(Rev 1)


	AM-2 Exh. B.pdf
	RCO 024 Rev 3- Modifications to Segment 1 EFR Profile (RCP No 34 Rev 1)
	RCO 024 Rev 2 - Modifications to Segment 1 EFR Profile Rev 4_0
	Exhibit G RCO 024_Final_0
	Worksheets
	CDOT
	EFR


	RS&H Scope 2019-01-21 Change order 34 SH402 SE Frontage Road
	RS&H EFR Exhibit A
	Exhibit B_21506ROW_Model_J25_RCP034revised
	RCP No 34- Mods to Seg 1 E Frnt Rd South of SH 402 Prof Mods(Rev 1)



	ADPA84.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 7

	ADPBBE9.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10F

	ADPF306.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10F

	ADP7236.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10D

	ADP7A72.tmp
	_________________________
	Town Manager

	ADP3FC7.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10B

	VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-cover sheet
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-General Notes
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-Phasing Plan
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-PDP
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-CIRCULATION PLAN
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-MASTER UP
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-GRADING AND DRAINAGE
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-OVERALL LANDSCAPE PLAN
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-LANDSCAPE PLAN (8)
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-LANDSCAPE PLAN (7)
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-LANDSCAPE PLAN (6)
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-LANDSCAPE PLAN (5)
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-LANDSCAPE PLAN (4)
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-LANDSCAPE PLAN (3)
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-LANDSCAPE PLAN (2)
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-LANDSCAPE PLAN
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-RESIDENTIAL ARCHITECUTRE
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-MULTI FAMILY ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-NON-RES ARC STANDARDS
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-SITE DETAILS
	111-1403JT VISTA COMMONS-PDPSHEETS-STREET SECTIONS


	February 2019 Financials.pdf
	Feb (2) 2019
	CR Feb 2019

	PRELIMINARY PLAT.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	2018064SUB-PAGE1
	2018064SUB-PAGE2
	2018064SUB-PAGE3
	2018064SUB-PAGE4
	2018064SUB-PAGE5
	2018064SUB-PAGE6
	2018064SUB-PAGE7
	2018064SUB-PAGE 8


	ADPD68A.tmp
	WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2018
	COUNCIL CHAMBERS
	1. CALL TO ORDER: Vice Chair Montez opened the meeting at 7:00 pm.
	4. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	A. Preliminary Plat and Preliminary Development Plan – Vista Commons PUD: Vice Chair Montez opened the hearing at 7:02pm. Town Planner Franklin introduced the item and presented the staff’s report. Applicant’s Representatives Josh McCairn, Chris Messe...
	A. Approval of Minutes of November 14, 2018: Motion by Commissioner Kingsolver,
	seconded by Commissioner Kiovsky to approve the minutes as presented.
	Unanimous.
	B. County Referrals: None.
	6. STAFF REPORT: Town Planner Franklin discussed the following:
	A. Recent Town Council Actions:


	ADP37AE.tmp
	WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2018
	COUNCIL CHAMBERS
	1. CALL TO ORDER: Vice Chair Montez opened the meeting at 7:00 pm.
	4. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	A. Preliminary Plat and Preliminary Development Plan – Vista Commons PUD: Vice Chair Montez opened the hearing at 7:02pm. Town Planner Franklin introduced the item and presented the staff’s report. Applicant’s Representatives Josh McCairn, Chris Messe...
	A. Approval of Minutes of November 14, 2018: Motion by Commissioner Kingsolver,
	seconded by Commissioner Kiovsky to approve the minutes as presented.
	Unanimous.
	B. County Referrals: None.
	6. STAFF REPORT: Town Planner Franklin discussed the following:
	A. Recent Town Council Actions:


	ADP51B5.tmp
	AGENDA MEMORANDUM
	TO:  Johnstown Planning and Zoning Commission
	PROPERTY DATA:
	Comprehensive Plan Designation:  Gateway Center: Commercial, Employment, Residential

	ADP9BCB.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10C

	ADPB337.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10E

	ADP9A5C.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10A

	JF3 WSSA Information.pdf
	JT Farms WSSA 2002
	Johnstown Farms_Water Allocation Memo_2019-02-18
	Johnstown Farms 3 Water Demand Worksheet

	ADPB0C8.tmp
	Town Council
	Town Hall, Council Chambers
	450 So. Parish Avenue
	7:00 PM
	MISSION STATEMENT-“The mission of the government of the Town of Johnstown is to provide leadership based upon trust and integrity, commitment directed toward responsive service delivery, and vision for enhancing the quality of life in our community.
	Members of the audience are invited to speak at the Council meeting.  Public Comment (item No. 5) is reserved for citizen comments on items not contained on the printed agenda.  Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. When sever...

	ADP2628.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10A




